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NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

TML

thNOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 35  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members of TML INDUSTRIES 
thLIMITED will be held on Saturday, 28  September, 2024, at 11:00 AM (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / 

Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt (a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 
stfinancial year ended 31  March, 2024  together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors 

thereon; and (b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
st 31 March, 2024 and the report of Auditors thereon and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, 

with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�ons as Ordinary Resolu�ons:

 (a) “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
stended 31  March, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to 

the members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

 (b) “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
stended 31  March, 2024 and the report of Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are 

hereby considered and adopted.”

2. To consider the appointment of Shri Atul Shroff (DIN: 00019645) as a Director who re�res by rota�on and, 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with 
or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

  “RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Shri Atul Shroff (DIN: 00019645), who re�res by rota�on at this mee�ng, be and is 
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

3. To consider the appointment of Shri Ashwin Shroff (DIN: 00019952) as a Director who re�res by rota�on and, 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with 
or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

  “RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Shri Ashwin Shroff (DIN: 00019952), who re�res by rota�on at this mee�ng, be and 
is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

st
4. To ra�fy the remunera�on of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending on 31  March, 2025 and in this 

regard to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on(s), the following resolu�on as an 
Ordinary Resolu�on:

  “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modifica�on(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the �me being in force), the Members of the Company be 
and hereby ra�fy the remunera�on of Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fi�y Thousand only)  plus applicable taxes 
thereon and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actual to be paid to M/s Y. S. Thakar & Co., 
Prac�cing Cost Accountants (Firm Registra�on Number: 000318) who have been appointed by the Board 
as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024-25.

  RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such 
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acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolu�on.”

NOTES:
th1. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its General Circulars Nos. 14/2020 dated 08  April, 2020, 17/2020 

th th dated 13  April, 2020, 20/2020 dated 05 May, 2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest 
thbeing 9/2023 dated 25  September, 2023, (‘MCA Circulars’) has permi�ed the holding of the Annual General 

Mee�ng through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or through Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the 
physical presence of the Members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the registered 
office of the Company at 1006/3, Goship House, Opp. Shree Praga� Vidhyalaya, Bhayli Sta�on Road, Bhayli, 
Vadodara - 391410.

2. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS 
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC 
OR OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. 
ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS, THE FACILITY  FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE 
MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP AND 
ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE. HOWEVER, THE BODY CORPORATES ARE ENTITLED 
TO APPOINT AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES TO ATTEND THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM AND PARTICIPATE 
THEREAT AND CAST THEIR VOTES THROUGH E-VOTING.

3. In case of joint holders a�ending the mee�ng, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names as per 
the Register of Members of the Company, as of the cut-off date, will be en�tled to vote at the mee�ng.

4. An explanatory statement pursuant to sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of special business at 
the mee�ng is annexed hereto.

5. Details required as per Secretarial Standards - 2 on General Mee�ngs, issued by the Ins�tute of Company 
Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors re�ring by rota�on seeking re-appointment at this Annual General 
Mee�ng (‘Mee�ng’ or ‘AGM’) is furnished as Annexure to this No�ce.

6. In accordance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, the No�ce of the AGM along with the Integrated Annual 
Report for FY 2023-24, is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses 
are registered with the Company/ Depositories, unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the 
same. Members may note that the No�ce will also be available on the Company’s website www.tmlind.com.

7. For receiving all communica�ons (including Annual Report) from the Company electronically:

 a)  Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered / updated their e-mail address 
with the Company are requested to register / update the same by wri�ng to the Company with details of 
folio number and a�aching a self-a�ested copy of PAN card at cs@tmlind.com. 

 b)  Members holding shares in dematerialized mode are requested to register / update their e-mail 
addresses, bank details and mobile number with the relevant Depository Par�cipant(s).

Registered Office: 
1006/3, Goship House,
Opp. Shree Praga� Vidhyalaya,
Bhayli Sta�on Road,
Bhayli, Vadodara - 391410

thDate: 19  July, 2024
Place: Vadodara

By Order of the Board of Directors
For TML Industries Limited

Janki Dave  
Company Secretary
(ACS : 51289)
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8. The a�endance of the Members a�ending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Sec�on 103 of the Act.

9. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Sec�on 170 
of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained 
under Sec�on 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspec�on by the members during the AGM. All 
documents referred to in the No�ce will also be available for inspec�on without any fee by the members from 
the date of circula�on of this No�ce up to the date of AGM.

10. Vo�ng on resolu�on placed before the mee�ng shall be done on show of hands only unless the poll is 
demanded. In case a poll is demanded during the AGM, members may send their votes on cs@tmlind.com. The 
Company is not statutorily required to provide facility of e-vo�ng.

11. As per Rule 9A of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securi�es) Rules 2014 the Company shall not able 
to transfer shares and issue new shares unless your physical shares are converted into dematerialized form. For 
this purpose, the Company has appointed Link In�me India Pvt. Ltd. as Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. You 
are requested get your physical shares converted into dematerialized form. The ISIN of Company’s equity 
shares is INE03UP01019.

12. The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends/deposits/interest on deposits from �me to 
�me, to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund (“IEPF”) established by the Central Government. Details of 
such unpaid/unclaimed amounts are available on the website of the Company www.tmlind.com and details of 
such amount transferred to IEPF are available on the website of the IEPF Authority.

st 13. The cut-off date for ascertaining the members en�tled to receive No�ce and Annual Report for this AGM is 21
September, 2024.

14. Procedure for Joining the AGM through VC / OAVM:

 (i) Members are en�tled to a�end the Annual General Mee�ng through VC/OAVM by following the below 
men�oned process. Facility for joining the Annual General Mee�ng through VC/OAVM shall open 15 
minutes before the �me scheduled for the Annual General Mee�ng:

 Step 1 :   Download and install Zoom Mee�ngs App in Mobile or Desktop
 Step 2 : Click on this link:  
    h�ps://us06web.zoom.us/mee�ng/register/tZcufuqgrj0qG9aEFjRoD7UOUwSWom8nPcDf

    Or
    Open Zoom App and enter these details:

    Mee�ng ID  :  833 9380 6012
    Passcode     :  488579
 
 Step 3 : Enter Your First Name, Last Name, Email address, Phone number and Folio Number/ DP ID 

   followed by Client ID.
 Step 4 : Click on Register. You will receive an email
 Step 5 : Open the email, click on “Join Mee�ng” or on the link given in the email.
 Step 6 : Click “Open Zoom” on the prompt.
 Step 7 : If the prompt doesn't appear, click “Launch Mee�ng” instead.

 (ii) Members who hold shares in Dematerialized form are requested to furnish their Client ID and DP ID Nos. 
and members who hold shares in physical form are requested to furnish their Folio No. for easy 
iden�fica�on of a�endance at the Mee�ng.
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 (iii) Members are encouraged to join the Mee�ng through Laptops/desktops for be�er experience. They will 
have to allow the Camera and will be required to use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the mee�ng. 

 (iv)  Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask ques�ons during the mee�ng may register 
themselves as a speaker by sending their request at least 7 days before the mee�ng men�oning their 
name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@tmlind.com. Only those 
shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will be allowed to express their views/ask 
ques�ons during the mee�ng. 

 (v) If you have any queries or issues regarding a�ending AGM through the link, you may contact the 
Company Secretary Ms. Janki Dave on 7227003371 or Mr. Brijen Pathak on 7600029117 or write an email 
to cs@tmlind.com.

The following Statement sets out all material facts rela�ng to the Special Business men�oned in the accompanying 
No�ce:

Item No. 4

The Board, on the recommenda�on of the Audit Commi�ee, has approved the appointment and remunera�on of 
stthe Cost Auditor to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year ending 31  March, 

2025 as per the following details:

 In accordance with the provisions of sec�on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remunera�on payable to the Cost Auditor has to be ra�fied by the shareholders 
of the Company. 

 Accordingly,  consent  of  the  Shareholders  is  sought by passing an Ordinary Resolu�on as set out at item no. 4 
 of  the  No�ce  for  ra�fica�on  of  the remunera�on  payable  to the  Cost  Auditor for the financial year  

stending  31  March, 2025.

 None of the Directors, their rela�ves, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respec�ve rela�ves is 
in any way interested or concerned in this Resolu�on.

 The Board recommends the Resolu�on as set out at Item No. 4 of the No�ce for the approval of the Members.

 

Name of the Cost Auditor Type Of Industry Audit Fees

Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fi�y Thousand 

only)  plus applicable taxes thereon 

and reimbursement of out of pocket 

expenses at actual

Organic & Inorganic ChemicalsY. S. Thakar and Co.

Cost Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 000318

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (‘the Act’)
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Details required as per Secretarial Standards on General Mee�ngs (SS-2) issued by the Ins�tute of 
Company Secretaries of India in respect of Directors seeking re-appointment at the AGM are provided 
below:

Par�culars Shri Ashwin Shroff Shri Atul Shroff

Age

Qualifica�on

Terms and Condi�ons of Re-
Appointment

Details of Remunera�on

Date of first appointment 
on Board

Shareholding in the Company

Rela�onship with other 
Directors, Manager, KMP

Memberships / 
Chairmanship of 
Commi�ees of other Boards

Jus�fica�on for choosing the 
appointee as Independent 
Director

Experience Industrialist with immense experience 
in Chemical and Bio-tech Industry and 
exper�se in the field of strategic 
business management and leadership

Industrialist with vast 
experience in Chemical and 
Bio-tech Industry and 
exper�se in the field of 
business management and 
administra�on

79 years 76  years

B.Sc. S.S.C.

Non-Execu�ve Director liable to 
re�re by rota�on

Non-Execu�ve Director liable 
to re�re by rota�on

Not Applicable Not Applicable

10th June, 2022 10th June, 2022

71500 228150

Father of Shri Ravi Shroff None

Number of Board Mee�ngs 
a�ended during the 
financial year 2023-24

5(Five) 5(Five)

1. Transpek Industry Limited
- Chairman of Finance & 
  Capex Commi�ee
- Member of Stakeholders 
   Rela�onship Commi�ee
- Member of Corporate Social 
  Responsibility Commi�ee
- Member of Nomina�on & 
  Remunera�on Commi�ee

Other Directorships 1.  Transpek Industry Ltd.
2.  Excel Industries Ltd.
3.  Excel Bio Resources Ltd.
4.  Developmental & Eco-friendly 
      Enterprises
5.  Climacrew Private Ltd.
6.  Anshul Specialty Molecules Pvt. Ltd.
7.  Mobitrash Recycle Ventures Pvt. Ltd.
8.  Kamaljyot Investments Ltd.
9.  Indian Centre for Climate and 
      Societalimpacts Research
10. Global Bha�a Benevolent 
      Founda�on

1.  Transpek Industry Limited
2.  Excel Industries Limited
3.  Transchem Agritech 
       Private Limited
4. Madison Investments 
    Private Limited

1.  Excel Industries Limited
    -  Chairman of Corporate Social 
       Responsibility Commi�ee

N.A. N.A.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For TML Industries Limited

Janki Dave
Company Secretary
(ACS 51289)

Registered Office:
1006/3, Goship House, Opp. Shree Praga� 
Vidhyalaya, Bhayli Sta�on Road,
Bhayli, Vadodara – 391410

Date: 19th July, 2024
Place: Vadodara
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,
TML Industries Limited

 thYour Directors have pleasure in presen�ng the 35 Annual Report and the Company's Audited Financial 
st Statements for the Financial Year ended 31 March 2024.

2. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS, THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND OUTLOOK

st For the Financial Year ending 31  March 2024, the Company reported revenue from opera�ons of ₹5,061.34 
lakhs, a decrease from ₹5,734.29 lakhs in the previous year. This decline was primarily due to a reduc�on in job 
work assignments. Despite this, the Company has been gradually increasing revenue through the sale of its 
own product, Epichlorohydrin (ECH).

 EBIDTA stood at ₹656.36 lakhs, down from ₹1,238.46 lakhs in the previous Financial Year. The Company 
achieved a cash profit of ₹62.89 lakhs, compared to ₹599.00 lakhs last year, due to adding back the 
deprecia�on amount to the Company's loss.

 Looking ahead, the Company is focused on improving its opera�onal efficiency and exploring new market 
opportuni�es to enhance revenue. Efforts are underway to expand the produc�on capacity of ECH from 2 MT 
per day to 7 MT per day, which is expected to posi�vely impact future revenue streams. The management is 
commi�ed to naviga�ng the current challenges and is op�mis�c about returning to profitability in the 
upcoming Financial Year.

3. DIVIDEND

 The Board of Directors does not recommend any Dividend for the year under review.

4. GENERAL RESERVE

 The Board does not propose to carry any amount to General Reserve.

5. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS FROM THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TILL THE DATE OF THIS 
REPORT

 There have been no material changes and commitments affec�ng the financial posi�on of the Company 
between the end of the Financial Year and the date of this report. 

Year ended on 
31.03.2024

Year ended on 
31.03.2023

Par�cular

Revenue from Opera�ons

Other Income

Total Income

Total Expense

Profit / (Loss) before Tax

Less: Deferred Tax (Asset)

Profit / (Loss) from Con�nuing Opera�ons

5,061.34

219.15

5,280.49

5,491.10

(210.61)

-- 

(210.61)

5,734.29

218.32

5,952.61

5,607.66

344.95

3.00

341.95

Key aspects of the financial performance of the Company are as follows:

1.F INANCIAL RESULTS : 

(Rs. In Lakhs)
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6. WEB-ADDRESS OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

 The Annual Return in Form MGT - 7 as per Sec�ons 134 (3) (a) of the Act is placed on the website of the 
Company and can be accessed through this link www.tmlind.com. 

7. INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND

 During the year under review there was no amount which became due to be deposited in the Investor 
Educa�on and Protec�on Fund (IEPF).

8. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 Board of Directors: 

 During the year under the review, the Board of Directors of your Company (“the Board”) consisted of 8 (Eight) 
Directors, including 4 (four) Non-Execu�ve Promoter Directors, 2 (two) Non-Execu�ve Directors, and 2 (two) 
Independent Directors.

 
 Re-appointment: 
 
 In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 152 of the Act and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company, Shri 

Atul Govindji Shroff (DIN: 00019645) and Shri Ashwin Champraj Shroff (DIN: 00019952), Non-Execu�ve, Non- 
Independent Directors of the Company, re�res by rota�on at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng and being 
eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. 

 Casual Vacancy of Independent Director: 

 During the Financial Year, Shri Maulik Mehta ceased to be a Director of the Company due to his unfortunate 
stdemise on 1  June, 2023. The Board acknowledges the significant contribu�ons of Shri Maulik Mehta to the 

Company’s opera�ons. To fill the casual vacancy caused by his death, the Board appointed Shri Shak� Mehta 
th(DIN: 05209989) as an Addi�onal Director, designated as an Independent Director, effec�ve 29  June, 2023. 

th thSubsequently, the shareholders of the Company at the 34  Annual General Mee�ng held on 29  September, 
2023, approved the appointment of Shri Shak� Mehta (DIN: 05209989), as Independent Director for a period 

th thof five (5) years from 29  June, 2023 upto  09  June, 2027 (both days inclusive).

 Independent Directors: 

   Shri L. Rajagopalan (DIN: 00063935) and Shri Shak� Mehta (DIN: 05209989) are the Independent Directors of 
the Company. The Company has received declara�ons from both the Independent Directors confirming that 
they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-Sec�on (6) of Sec�on 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken on record the declara�on and confirma�on 
submi�ed by the Independent Directors a�er undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same.

 The Board is of the opinion that all Directors including the Independent Directors of the Company possess 
requisite qualifica�ons, integrity, exper�se and experience in the fields of science and technology, 
digitalisa�on, strategy, finance, governance, human resources, safety, sustainability, etc.

 Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”)

th
 During the year under review, Ms. Kru� Parekh, Company Secretary, resigned effec�ve from 25  November, 

th2023, and Ms. Janki Kirtan Dave was appointed as Company Secretary effec�ve from 16  February, 2024.

 In terms of the provisions of Sec�on 2(51) and Sec�on 203 of the Act, the following is the Key Managerial 
stPersonnel (KMP) of the Company as on 31  March, 2024:

th35  Annual Report 2023-24  
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th Ms. Janki Kirtan Dave, Company Secretary (w.e.f. 16  February, 2024)

9. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

 During the year under review, 5 (five) Board Mee�ngs were held.

10. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

 Pursuant to the requirements of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, a separate mee�ng of the 
Independent Directors of the Company is required to be held without the presence of Non-Independent 
Directors and members of the management, to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the 
Board as a whole, the performance of the Chairman of the Company and also to assess the quality, quan�ty and 
�meliness of the flow of informa�on between the Company, management and the Board that is necessary for 
the Board to effec�vely and reasonably perform their du�es. 

 During the year under review, 1 (one) such mee�ng of the Independent Directors was held.

11. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

 Audit Commi�ee
 

th During the year under review, the Audit Commi�ee was recons�tuted on 29  June, 2023 due to the 
unfortunate demise of Shri Maulik Mehta, Independent Director. Shri Shak� Mehta, Independent Director, was 
inducted as the new member of the Commi�ee.

 st As of 31 March, 2024, the Audit Commi�ee comprised 3 (Three) Members out of which 2 (Two) are 
Independent Directors and 1 (One) is a Non-Execu�ve Director. The Members are:  Shri L Rajagopalan, 
Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee, Shri Shak� Mehta, Independent Director and Shri 
Avtar Singh, Director.

 During  the year under review, 4(Four) Audit Commi�ee Mee�ngs were held and there were no instances 
when the recommenda�ons of the Audit Commi�ee were not accepted by the Board.

 Share Transfer Commi�ee
 

st As  of  31  March, 2024,  the  Share  Transfer  Commi�ee  comprised 3  (Three) Members out of which 1 
 (One) Independent Director. The members are:  Shri L. Rajagopalan, Independent Director and Chairman of 

the  Share  Transfer  Commi�ee,  Shri  Atul  Shroff,  Director,  and  Shri  Avtar  Singh,  Director,  as  its members.
 During  the  year  under  review, 1 (one) Share  Transfer  Commi�ee  mee�ng  was  held.

 Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee

th During the year under review, the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee was recons�tuted on 29  June, 
2023 following the unfortunate demise of Shri Maulik Mehta, Independent Director. Shri Shak� Mehta, 
Independent Director, was appointed to fill the vacancy.

st  As of 31 March, 2024, the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee comprised 4 (Four) members, Shri Ravi 
Shroff, Director and Chairman of the Commi�ee, Shri L. Rajagopalan, Independent Director, Shri Shak� Mehta, 
Independent Director, and Shri Avtar Singh, Director, as its members.

 During the year under review, 1 (one) mee�ng of the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee was held.

 Finance & Capex Commi�ee

th During the year under review, the Finance & Capex Commi�ee was recons�tuted on 29  June, 2023 following 

th35  Annual Report 2023-24  8 
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the unfortunate demise of Shri Maulik Mehta, Independent Director. Shri Shak� Mehta, Independent Director, 
was appointed to fill the vacancy.

st As of 31  March, 2024, the Finance & Capex Commi�ee comprised 3 (Three) members, Shri Mukesh Patel, 
Director and Chairman of the Commi�ee, Shri Shak� Mehta, Independent Director, and Shri Avtar Singh, 
Director, as its members.

 During the year under review, 2 (two) mee�ngs of the Finance & Capex Commi�ee were held. 

12. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

rd th  At the 33  Annual General Mee�ng held on 28 September, 2022, M/s. CNK & Associates LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, Vadodara, (Firm registra�on No. 101961W/W100036) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of 

ththe Company for a second term of five (5) consecu�ve years upto 38  Annual General Mee�ng by the members 
to be held in 2027.

 The report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes to Schedules is a part of this Integrated Annual Report. 
There has been no qualifica�on, reserva�on, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their 
Report. Emphasis made by the auditor in their report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
comments.

13. DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORT BY AUDITOR

 No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Board.

14. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

 During the year under review, your Company has not directly or indirectly –

  i. given any loan to any person or other body corporate other than usual advances envisaged in a 
contract for supply of materials or equipment or job work, if any;

  ii. given any guarantee or provided security in connec�on with a loan to any other body corporate or 
person; and

  iii. acquired by way of subscrip�on, purchase or otherwise, the securi�es of any other body corporate.

 The details of loans, guarantees and investments are provided in Notes No. 12 and 13 to the Financial 
Statements.

15. CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

 All related party transac�ons entered into during FY 2023-24 were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary 
course of business and were reviewed and approved by the Audit Commi�ee. With a view to ensure con�nuity 
of day-to-day opera�ons, an omnibus approval is obtained for related party transac�ons which are of 
repe��ve nature and entered in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. A statement 
giving details of all related party transac�ons entered pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted is placed 
before the board on a regular basis for its review. The disclosure of transac�ons with related par�es for the 
year, as per Accoun�ng Standard - 18 Related Party Disclosures is given in Note No. 28.3 to the Balance Sheet as 

ston 31  March, 2024.

 Details rela�ng to the transac�ons considered material in nature have been given in the Annexure to this 
report in the prescribed form AOC - 2 pursuant to clause (h) of sub–sec�on 3 of Sec�on 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as ‘Annexure II’.
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16. DEPOSITS

 During the year under review, the Company has accepted Rs. 7,50,000/- as deposits from the Promoter as 
covered under the Companies Act, 2013. 

17. SHARE CAPITAL

 During the year under review, there has not been any change in the issued and paid up share capital of the 
Company. The Company has neither issued any equity shares with differen�al rights as to dividend, vo�ng or 
otherwise, nor issued any shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any 
scheme. During the year under review, the Company has not brought out any scheme of provision of money for 
the purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees.

18. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

 In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee (NRC) has been duly cons�tuted. The Board has adopted and implemented a 
nomina�on and remunera�on policy for the selec�on, appointment, and removal of Directors, Senior 
Management, and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), including their remunera�on.

 The NRC considers various criteria such as qualifica�on, age, exper�se, experience, understanding of 
governance and management prac�ces, and independence when selec�ng individuals for directorship. For 
the appointment of KMP and Senior Management posi�ons, the Commi�ee evaluates qualifica�ons, age, 
experience, competence, industry background, and managerial and leadership abili�es.

 When determining remunera�on packages for Directors, KMPs, and Senior Management Personnel, the NRC 
takes into considera�on relevant factors including market condi�ons, business performance, prac�ces in 
comparable companies, and the financial and commercial health of the Company. This approach ensures 
compliance with prevailing laws, government guidelines, and industry best prac�ces.

 The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy of your Company can be accessed on the website of the Company on 
this link  h�ps://www.tmlind.com/webfiles/24222021042227Nomina�on-and-Remunera�on-Commi�ee-
Policy-sec�on-178.pdf.

19. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS & EMPLOYEES

 During the year under review, none of the Directors were in receipt of any si�ng fees and commission from the 
Company or from its Subsidiary.

 Disclosures pertaining to remunera�on and other details as required under Sec�on 197(12) of the Act read 
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
(‘Rules’) are enclosed as Annexure- IV forming part of this Report. The statement containing par�culars of 
employees as required under Sec�on 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Rules also forms 
part of this Report.

20. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

 The Company has one wholly owned subsidiary, namely Oasis Agritech Limited which has, as reported earlier, 
suspended its business ac�vi�es since F. Y. 2011-2012. Details regarding the same have been provided in Form 
AOC-1 a�ached herewith as Annexure-I.

21. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary for FY 2023-24 are prepared in 
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compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and in accordance with the Indian Accoun�ng Standards 
no�fied under the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015. The Consolidated Financial 
Statements together with the Auditors’ report form part of this Annual Report.

  
22. RISK MANAGEMENT

 The Company has formulated a policy to iden�fy and evaluate business risks and opportuni�es in compliance 
with the provisions of Sec�on 134 (3) (n) of the Act. This policy framework ensures transparency, minimizes 
adverse impact on the business objec�ves and enhances the Company’s compe��ve advantage.

23. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

 The Company has laid down adequate and effec�ve Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 
Statements, commensurate with its size and nature of business opera�ons. During the year, such controls were 
tested and upgraded and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or opera�on were observed.

24. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

 The par�culars rela�ng to conserva�on of energy, technology absorp�on, foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo as required to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 134 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided in Annexure- III forming part of this Report.

25. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

 During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

26. SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS

 No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 
concern status and the Company’s opera�ons in future.

27. QUALITY, ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

 TML Industries Ltd. is cer�fied for Quality Management System (ISO 9001:2015), Environment Management 
System (ISO 14001:2015) and Health & Safety Management System (ISO 45001:2018).

 During the year under review, the Company planted several saplings of trees in the empty landscapes at 
Karakhadi and Piludra units as part of their environmental conserva�on efforts. The Company maintains strong 
safety management systems to ensure the safety of its employees and the surrounding community.

28. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

 During the year under review, your Company is not statutorily obligated to undertake any CSR (Corporate 
Social Responsibility) ac�vi�es as per the provisions outlined in the Companies Act, 2013.

29. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

 Your Company is commi�ed to providing a safe and inclusive workplace free from sexual harassment. We 
believe in providing a mechanism for addressing complaints of sexual harassment by any employee, without 
the fear of reprisals in any form or manner.

 The Company has put in place a Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013. An internal commi�ee 
of women employees is also set up to redress complaints received which are monitored by women supervisors 
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who are fully aware of the Policy and redressal mechanism. All employees of the Company, those of 
contractors as well as trainees are covered under this Policy. No complaint was received from any employee 

stduring the Financial Year 2023-24 and no complaint is outstanding as on 31  March, 2024 for redressal.

30. DISCLOSURE ABOUT APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 
BANKRUPTCY CODE (IBC), 2016

 During the year under review no applica�on has been made and no proceeding is pending under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016.

31. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

 The Company has followed applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, rela�ng to ‘Mee�ngs of the 
Board of Directors’ and ‘General Mee�ngs’ respec�vely.

32. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
 
 Pursuant to Sec�ons 134(3)(c) of the Act, the Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that 

stfor the year ended 31  March, 2024:

 a) In the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun�ng standards have been followed along 
with proper explana�on rela�ng to material departures;

 b) The Directors have selected such accoun�ng policies and applied these consistently and made 
judgements and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

 c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

 d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

 e) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.

33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

 Your directors acknowledge with thanks the con�nued support and valuable co-opera�on extended by the 
business cons�tuents, investors, bankers, customers, vendors and shareholders of the Company. 

 Your directors appreciate the hard work, dedica�on, and commitment of all its employees including workmen 
at the manufacturing plants.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Atul Shroff
Director
(DIN: 00019645)

thDate: 19  July, 2024
Place: Vadodara

Avtar Singh 
Director 
(DIN: 00063569) 
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ANNEXURES TO DIRECTORS' REPORT
ANNEXURE-I

FORM NO. AOC-1

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries or associate companies or 
joint ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part A Subsidiaries

(Informa�on in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

1.  Sl. No. 1  

2.  Name of the subsidiary Oasis Agritech Limited

3.  The date since when subsidiary was acquired 03.07.1996 (Date of Incorpora�on)

4.  Repor�ng period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 

  from the holding Company's repor�ng period     01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024

5.  Repor�ng currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of 

  the relevant Financial Year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. Not Applicable

6.  Share capital 5,00,000

7.  Reserves and surplus (93,19,881)

8.  Total Assets 15,687

9.  Total Liabili�es 15,687

10.  Investments Nil

11.  Turnover Nil

12.  Profit before taxa�on Nil

13.  Provision for taxa�on Nil

14.  Profit a�er taxa�on Nil

15.  Proposed Dividend Nil

16.  Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100%

Part B Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Sec�on 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and

Joint Ventures

 Name of Associates or Joint Ventures Name 1 Name 2 Name 3

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date Nil Nil Nil

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was 

 associated or acquired Nil Nil Nil

3. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the 

 Company on the year end Nil Nil Nil

 Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture Nil Nil Nil

 Extend of Holding (in percentage) Nil Nil Nil

4. Descrip�on of how there is significant influence Nil Nil Nil

5. Reason why the associate / joint venture is not consolidated Nil Nil Nil

6. Net worth a�ributable to Shareholding as per latest audited 

 Balance Sheet Nil Nil Nil

7. Profit or Loss for the year Nil Nil Nil

 i. Considered in Consolida�on Nil Nil Nil

 ii. Not Considered in Consolida�on Nil Nil Nil

Atul Shroff
Director
(DIN: 00019645)

Avtar Singh
Director
(DIN: 00063569)

Janki Dave
Company Secretary
(ACS 51289)

th
Date: 19  July, 2024
Place: Vadodara

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

th35  Annual Report 2023-24  



TML
 TML Industries Limited  

ANNEXURE-II
FORM NO. AOC – 2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub – sec�on (3) of sec�on 134 of the Companies Act, and Rules made there under)

Form for Disclosure of par�culars of contract / arrangements entered into by the Company with the Related 
Par�es referred to in sub sec�on (1) of sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length 
transac�on under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transac�ons not at arm's length basis: Not Applicable

2. Details of Material Contracts or Arrangement or Transac�ons at arm's length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and 
nature of rela�onship

Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 
transac�ons

Transpek Industry Ltd.
Shri Dipesh Shroff, Shri Ravi Shroff, Shri Atul Shroff and Shri 
Ashwin Shroff are Directors in TML Industries Limited and 
Transpek Industry Limited and they hold, along with their 
rela�ves, more than 2% of paid-up share capital of Transpek 
Industry Limited.

Job Work

Dura�on of the contracts/ 
arrangements/ transac�ons

stKarakhadi Unit: 1  December 2021 to 30th November 2026
ndPiludra Unit: 22  December 2022 to 21st December 2027

Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transac�ons 
including the value, if any:

Value: Rs.4,729.24 lakhs

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: thKarakhadi Unit: 30  November, 2021
thPiludra Unit: 29  November, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Atul Shroff
Director
(DIN: 00019645)

Avtar Singh
Director
(DIN: 00063569)

thDate: 19  July, 2024
Place: Vadodara

(b)

Nil

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any:

TML Industries Limited
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(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(i)  Steps taken to conserve energy

  • Installed a 1.0 HP Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) at the ECH pilot plant, reducing power 
consump�on from 1.0 amps to approximately 0.5 amps.

  • Hot & Cold insula�on work on essen�al equipment, resul�ng in an annual power savings of 
approximately Rs. 24,090

  • Replaced halogen and filament lamps with 40-wa� LED lamps throughout the en�re plant, saving 
approximately 16 kWh of electricity per day.

(ii) Steps taken to u�lize alterna�ve sources of energy

  • NIL

(iii) Capital investment on energy conserva�on equipment

  • NIL

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(i) Major efforts made towards technology absorp�on

 • The Company has been making substan�al efforts in reduc�on of process waste and effluents.
 • By reac�ng the process vent gas HCL with glycerol, ECH produc�on has started with pilot plant, 02 

TPD capacity.

 (ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduc�on, product development or import 
subs�tu�on

  • Con�nuous efforts in reduc�on of process waste and effluents have resulted in improvement in the 
final products which are delivered to customers, there are no rejec�ons and they are aligned to  
their purity norms. 

  • 3 new products are developed & samples are under evalua�on at customer end. 

(iii) Informa�on regarding imported technology (imported during last three years)

 •  No technology was imported during the Financial Year
 
 (iv)  Expenditure incurred on Research and Development

  • The Company is under process of development of Laboratory for the exis�ng products

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

 (i) Foreign Exchange Earned: Nil
 (ii) Foreign Exchange Used: Nil

ANNEXURE-III

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO
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ANNEXURE-IV

Informa�on Pursuant to Sec�on 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014 for Financial Year 2023-24 
   
(a)  Top 10 employees in terms of salary drawn during the year

(b)  Employees drawing salary of Rs.1,02,00,000/- or above per annum - None
 
(c)  No other employees have received a remunera�on Rs.8,50,000/- per month in part of the year - None

Remunera�on

Paid

(In Rs.)

Nature of

Employment

(contractual

or

otherwise)

Educa�onal

Qualifica�on

Date of

Joining

Exp 

(Yrs.)

Age

(Yrs.)

Previous 

Employment

% of 

Equity

shares of 

the

Company

Whether 
Rela�ve 
of any 

Director 
or 

Manager, 
if yes, 

name of 
Director 

or 
Manager

4000008 Permanent BE - 

Chemical

01-05-1992 33 54 Transpek,

 Vadodara

0.18% No

2299980 Permanent Msc 

Chemistry

19-04-1993 32 54 NA 0.06% No

2199996 Permanent MBA - 

Finance

16-08-2010 31 53 Nibbana, 

Mauri�us

0.02% No

2000028 Permanent BE - 

Chemical

27-05-2015 28 50 Unique 

Chemicals, 

Panoli

Nill No

1500000 Permanent 01-06-2006 18 38 NA 0.00% No

1311000 Permanent B.Com-Ac

&

Audi�ng

12-05-2007 29 52 Panasonic 

Energy 

India 

Co Ltd

0.00% No

 

MBA (Finance), 

PDM, 

PGDFM

1249992 Permanent BE - 

Electrical

12-08-2008 32 52 Isagro 

Asia

Panoli

Nill No

1100016 Permanent DME 15-12-2011 35 57 DCW 

Limited,

Dhranga-

dhra

Nill No

1046171 Permanent B.Com, 

DCS, 

DCPA

02-11-2006 37 58 Mobile

ERP So�e-

ch Pvt. Ltd, 

Vadodara

0.02% No

1000008 Permanent Bsc 

Chemistry

01-04-1993 32 55 NA 0.02% No

Sl.

No.

Name of 

the

Employees

Designa�on

1 Kismat 

Jayan�lal 

Patel

GM

2 Dikshit 

Thakorbhai 

Patel

DGM

3 Brijen 

Sureshchandra 

Pathak

AGM

4 Yogendra 

Soni

AGM

5 Rahul 

Prakash 

Gadkari

Sr. 

Manager

6 Abhay 

Arun 

Pagedar

Sr. 

Manager

7 Alpesh 

Ishwarbhai 

Patel

Manager

8 Amrutbhai 

Ishwarbhai 

Motka

Dy. 

Manager

9 Tushar

Desai

Dy. 

Manager

10 Kalpesh 

Patel

Manager
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of TML Industries Limited

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of TML Industries Limited (“the Company”), 
stwhich comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31  March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash 

Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of 
significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid 
Standalone Financial Statements give the informa�on required by the Act in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 

 stthe Company as at 31 March, 2024, its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
 
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under sec�on 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Ma�er

1. We draw a�en�on of the members to Note No. 28.7 regarding these Standalone Financial Statements being 
stprepared on going concern basis though the company has nega�ve net worth as on 31  March, 2024 and as on 

that date, its current liabili�es are substan�ally higher than current assets. The same is on the basis of 
management representa�on, that the opera�ons of the company are con�nuing in view of the agreement 
with a customer to manufacture products on “Toll manufacturing basis” and the management future plans for 
expanding its own manufacturing facili�es for new products. 

st2. We draw a�en�on of the members to Note No. 28.5 that on 31  March, 2024, the company has recognised 
deferred tax asset of Rs. 1,366.00 lakhs on account of unabsorbed deprecia�on and business losses as per the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 on the basis that the agreement with a customer to manufacture products on “Toll 
manufacturing basis” results in virtual certainty to generate sufficient future taxable income which will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the ma�ers in 1 and 2 above.

Informa�on Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the prepara�on of the other informa�on. 
The other informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
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informa�on iden�fied above and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent 
with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibili�es of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the prepara�on of these Standalone Financial Statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial posi�on, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, including the accoun�ng Standards 
specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng 
policies; making judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the Standalone Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so;

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial repor�ng process.

Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement 
resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control;

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls;

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and 
related disclosures made by management;

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exist related to events or condi�ons that may cast 
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significant doubt on the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern;

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transac�ons and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone 
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
iden�fied misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and 
�ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-sec�on (11) of sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure A” 
statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examina�on of those books;

 
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards 
specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act;

st(e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on 31  March, 2024 taken on 
strecord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31  March, 2024 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164(2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the Company 
and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B” and

(g) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

 In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
company has not paid any managerial remunera�on to its directors during the year.
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(h) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and 
according to the explana�ons given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial posi�on in its 
Standalone Financial Statements - Refer Note No. 27.1 to the Standalone Financial Statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accoun�ng standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts; 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Educa�on and Protec�on Fund by the Company;

iv. 
i. The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 

Note No. 30 (v) to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es 
iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ul�mate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries;

ii. The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
Note No. 30 (vi) to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have been received by the 
company from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (“Funding Par�es”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries; and

iii. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our no�ce that has caused us to believe that the 
representa�ons under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement.

v. There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the company and hence provisions of 
Sec�on 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

vi. Based on our examina�on which included test checks, the company has used an accoun�ng 
so�ware for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transac�ons 
recorded in the so�ware. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For CNK & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on No: 101961W/W-100036

Pareen Shah
Partner
Membership No.125011

Place: Vadodara
thDate: 19  July, 2024

UDIN: 24125011BKERAB8182
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The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the standalone 
stfinancial statements for the year ended 31  March, 2024.

To the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons provided to us by the company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report 

1(a)(A) The company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details 
and situa�on of property, plant & equipment;

The company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars of intangible assets;

As informed to us, the Company has a phased programme of physical verifica�on of its property, plant 
& equipment so as to cover all assets once in three years. In accordance with this programme, certain 
property, plant & equipment were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were 
no�ced on such verifica�on for these assets. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verifica�on is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets;

According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of the 
records of the Company, the �tle deeds of immovable proper�es are held in the name of the 
Company;

According to informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the company has revalued its land  during the 
year. The revalua�on is carried out by the registered valuer and the resul�ng  increase due to 
revalua�on in the carrying value of land is Rs.632.20 lakhs. (Also refer note 4(1) to the Standalone 
Financial Statements;

As disclosed in Note No. 30(i) to the Standalone Financial Statements, and as verified by us, no 
proceedings have been ini�ated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami property 
under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder;

According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the inventories have been physically 
verified during the year by the management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, having regard to 
the nature and loca�on of stocks, the frequency of the physical verifica�on is reasonable and no 
discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class were no�ced on physical verifica�on;

Based on our verifica�on of the documents provided to us and according to the informa�on and 
explana�ons given by the Management, the working capital limits sanc�oned to the Company from 
banks or financial ins�tu�ons does not exceed Rs. 5 crores and hence the requirements of clause 
3(ii)(b) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") are not applicable to the 
Company;

During the year, the Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or 
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other par�es. Hence the requirements of clause 3(iii) of the 
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") are not applicable to the Company;

Based on our verifica�on of the documents provided to us and according to the informa�on and 
explana�ons given by the management, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security, 
the Company has complied with the provisions of sec�on 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013;

The company has complied with the provisions of sec�ons 73 to 76 of the Act and other relevant 
provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder for deposits accepted by the company;

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company as prescribed by the Central 
Government under sub sec�on (1) of Sec�on 148 of the Companies Act and are of the opinion that 
prima facie the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have, 
however, not made a detailed examina�on of the cost records with a view to determine whether they 
are accurate or complete;

1(a)(B)

1(b)

1(c)

1(d)

1(e)

2(a)

2(b)

3

4

5

6
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7(a) In our opinion, the company is generally regular in deposi�ng undisputed statutory dues including 
goods and service tax, provident fund, employee state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, 
custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues as applicable with 
appropriate authori�es. There were no undisputed amounts payable with respect to above statutory 

stdues in arrears as at 31  March, 2024 for a period of six months from the date they became payable;

 TML Industries Limited  

According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and based on our examina�on of the 
records of the Company, there are no disputed dues of, goods and services tax, sales tax, income tax, 
customs, wealth-tax, service tax, excise duty, cess that have not been deposited on account of any 
disputes;

As disclosed in Note No. 30(vii) to the Standalone Financial Statements and as verified by us, there 
were no transac�ons which were not recorded in the books of accounts, have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961; 

In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the company has not 
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to financial 
Ins�tu�on, bank, government or other lender, except the following interest amounts which has been 
accrued and due for the payment:

Nature of borrowing
Amount not paid 

on due date 
(Rs.in lakhs)

Whether 
principal 

or interest

No. of  days 
delay 

or unpaid

Remarks 
(pertains to FY)

Inter Corporate Deposits 99.76

128.70

132.28

161.30

168.30

22.99

179.28

227.69

189.04

181.93

16.46

95.05

101.75

102.57

113.70

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

Interest

1825

1460

1095

730

365

1825

1460

1095

730

365

1825

1460

1095

730

365

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2022-23

Deposit from Promoters

Deposit from Directors

As disclosed in Note No. 30(ix) to the Standalone Financial Statements and as verified by us, the 
company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or other lender;

Based on the procedures performed by us and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given 
by the management, the term loans taken by the company were applied for the purpose for which the 
loans were obtained;

On an overall examina�on of the Standalone Financial Statements of the company, funds raised on 
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the 
company;

The company has not taken any funds from any en�ty or person on account of or to meet the 
obliga�ons of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures;

The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securi�es held in its subsidiaries, 
joint ventures or associate companies;

7(b)

8

9(a)

9(b)

9(c)

9(d)

9(e)

9(f)
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10(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of ini�al public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year and hence repor�ng under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable;

 TML Industries Limited  
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10(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferen�al allotment or private placement of shares 
or conver�ble debentures (fully or partly or op�onally) and hence repor�ng under clause 3(x)(b) of 
the Order is not applicable;  

11(a) During the course of our examina�on of the books of account and records of the company, carried out 
in accordance with generally accepted audi�ng prac�ces in India and according to the informa�on 
and explana�ons given to us, we have neither come across any incidence of fraud by the Company or 
any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees no�ced or reported during the year, nor have 
we been informed of any such case by the management;

11(b) No report under sub-sec�on (12) of sec�on 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report;

11(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 
company during the year;

12 In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company is not a 
Nidhi company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable;

13 According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and based on our examina�on of the 
records of the Company, transac�ons with the related par�es are in compliance with sec�ons 177 and 
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transac�ons have been disclosed in the 
Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accoun�ng standards;

14(a) In our opinion and the records examined by us, the company is not required to have an internal audit 
system as per provisions of the sec�on 138 of the Companies Act 2013. However, the company has an 
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business of the company;

14(b) We have considered report of the internal auditor for the period under audit;

15 According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and based on our examina�on of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transac�ons with directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable;

16(a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Hence, repor�ng under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the order is not applicable;

16(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direc�ons, 2016) and accordingly repor�ng under clause 
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable;

17 According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us and based on our examina�on of the 
records, company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and the immediately 
preceding financial year;

18 There is no resigna�on of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the repor�ng under 
clause 3(xviii) is not applicable;

19 The company has nega�ve net worth, and its current liabili�es has exceeded its current assets, that 
may cast a doubt regarding going concern assump�ons. However, as explained by the management in 
Note No. 28.7 that the opera�ons of the company are con�nuing in view of the agreement with a 
customer to manufacture products on “Toll manufacturing basis” and the management future plans 
for expanding its own manufacturing facili�es for new products and on the basis of the other financial 
ra�os, ageing and expected dates of realisa�on of financial assets and payment of financial liabili�es, 
other informa�on accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements and our knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and Management plans, and  based on our examina�on of the evidence 
suppor�ng the assump�ons, nothing has come to our a�en�on, which causes us to believe that any 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indica�ng that company is not capable of 
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mee�ng its liabili�es exis�ng at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date. 

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further 
state that our repor�ng is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabili�es falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due;

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) are not applicable to the company and 
therefore repor�ng under clause (xx) (a) and (b) is not applicable.

20(a)
& (b)

Annexure-B to the Independent Auditors' Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of TML Industries Limited (“the 
 stCompany”) as of 31 March, 2024 in conjunc�on with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 

year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management and Board of Directors of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company 
considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibili�es 
include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Company that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to respec�ve company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the 
�mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial repor�ng 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Audi�ng prescribed under sec�on 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the company were established and maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in 
all material respects.

For CNK & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on No: 101961W/W-100036                                             

Pareen Shah
Partner
Membership No.125011

Place: Vadodara
thDate: 19  July, 2024

UDIN: 24125011BKERAB8182
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of the company and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the 
design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

A company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company's internal financial control over 
financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the Company;(2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisa�ons of management and directors of the 
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorised 
acquisi�on, use, or disposi�on of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over financial 
repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial repor�ng may 
become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us,  the Company has, in 
all material respects, an internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and such 

 st
internal financial controls over financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at 31 March-2024, based on the 
internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For CNK & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on No: 101961W/W-100036                                             

Pareen Shah
Partner
Membership No.125011

Place: Vadodara
th

Date: 19  July, 2024

UDIN: 24125011BKERAB8182
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A EQUITY & LIABILITIES    
1 Shareholders' Funds    
 (a) Share capital 3 525.00 525.00
 (b) Reserves and surplus 4 (-)2,352.66 (-)2,774.25
     (-)1,827.66 (-)2,249.25
2 Non-Current Liabili�es    
 (a) Long- term borrowings 5 5,193.65 5,217.49
 (b) Long- term provisions 6 394.68 347.82
     5,588.33 5,565.31
3 Current Liabili�es    
 (a) Short term borrowings 7 31.35 94.71
 (b) Trade payables   
  i)  Total outstanding dues of Micro and small 
         enterprises 8 41.55 36.77
  ii)  Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
         than micro and small enterprises 8 741.13 839.68
 (c) Other current liabili�es 9 2,702.02 2,255.14
 (d) Short -term provisions 10 71.09 58.75
     3,587.14 3,285.05
         Total  7,347.81 6,601.11
B ASSETS    
1 Non-Current Assets    
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 11  
  I) Property, Plant and Equipment  4,465.73 3,773.08
  II) Intangible assets  7.68 6.60
  III) Capital work-in-progress  110.86 330.96
     4,584.27 4,110.64
 (b) Non-current  Investments 12 5.67 5.73
 (c) Deferred tax assets (net) 28.5 1,366.00 1,366.00
 (d) Long- term loans and advances 13 134.73 206.62
 (e) Other non-current assets 14 100.06 94.05
     6,190.73 5,783.04
2 Current Assets    
 (a) Inventories 15 253.89 205.54
 (b) Trade receivables 16 316.63 275.51
 (c) Cash and Bank Balances 17 469.61 48.20
 (d) Short- term loans and advances 18 68.34 71.88
 (e) Other current assets 19 48.61 216.94
     1,157.08 818.07
    Total  7,347.81 6,601.11
  Notes forming part of the Financial Statements     1 to 31

st
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31  March, 2024

Par�culars Note
As at

st31 March 2024
₹ (Lakh)

 

As at
st31 March 2023
₹ (Lakh)

 

As per our report of even date 

For CNK & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 101961W/W – 100036 

Pareen Shah 
Partner 
Mem No: 125011 
Date : July 2024 

th19   
Place : Vadodara 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Atul Shroff Avtar Singh                 
Director  Director                  
DIN: 00019645  DIN: 00063569                 

 
 
 

Date : July 2024 
th

19
 

Place : Vadodara 

Janki Dave  
Company Secretary
Mem. No. ACS : 51289
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I Revenue from Opera�ons  20 5,061.34 5,734.29

II Other Income 21 219.15 218.32

III Total Income (I + II)  5,280.49 5,952.61

    

IV Expenses   

a Cost of Raw Material Consumed 22 116.14 104.73

b Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and 

 Semi Finished Goods 23 (-)42.40 (-)59.25

c Employee Benefits Expense 24 1,424.87 1,205.50

d Finance Costs 25 593.47 636.93

e Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on Expense 11 273.50 256.58

f Other Expenses 26 3,125.52 3,463.17

 Total Expenses (IV)  5,491.10 5,607.66

    

V Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (III-IV)  (-)210.61 344.95

    

VI Tax Expenses   

 Current Tax    -     -   

 Short/Excess  Provision for Tax in earlier years   -     -   

 Deferred Tax 28.5 0.00 3.00

    

VII Profit /(Loss) from Con�nuing Opera�ons (V-VI)  (-)210.61 341.95

    

VIII Earnings  per Equity Share (of Rs 10/- each):   

 Basic and Diluted 28.6 (-)4.01 6.51

 Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  1 to 31

stStandalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31  March, 2024

Par�culars Note

 

As per our report of even date 

For CNK & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 101961W/W – 100036 

Pareen Shah 
Partner 
Mem No: 125011 

Date : July 2024  th19   
Place : Vadodara 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Atul Shroff Avtar Singh                 Janki Dave  
Director  Director                  Company Secretary
DIN: 00019645  DIN: 00063569                 Mem. No. ACS : 51289

 

 
 

Date : July 2024 
th19  

Place : Vadodara 

For the year ended 
st31 March 2024
₹ (Lakh)
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A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
 Net Loss Before Tax                                              (-)210.61 344.95
 Adjustments for:   
 Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on Expense  273.50 256.58
 Gain/ Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipments (net)   (-)12.09 (-)40.44
 Dividend Income  0.00 (-)0.06
 Rent Income  (-)2.63 (-)0.06
 Interest Income   (-)17.24 (-)6.12
 Interest Expense   593.46 623.25
 Investment wri�en-off  0.06 0.00
 Unrealised foreign exchange fluctua�on gain  (-)0.01 (-)0.82
                                                                                                                                      835.04 832.33
 Opera�ng Profit/(Loss) before working capital changes 624.43 1,177.28
   
 Adjustments for working capital changes:   
 Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories  (-)48.36 (-)67.28
 Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables  (-)41.13 161.21
 Decrease / (Increase) in Loans and Advances  (-)2.27 2.22
 Decrease / (Increase) in Other assets  171.75 (-)135.10
 (Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables  (-)93.77 (-)274.59
 (Decrease) / Increase in Provisions  59.20 21.90
 (Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabili�es  40.87 (-)97.06
    86.28 (-)388.69
 Cash Generated from Opera�ons  710.71 788.59
   
 Taxes (paid)  68.16 (-)65.22
 Net cash generated from Opera�ng Ac�vi�es (A)  778.87 723.37
   
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
 Purchase of Property, plant and equipment  (-)134.73 (-)318.33
 Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment  35.51 61.76
 (Increase) / Decrease in fixed deposits  (-)430.82 (-)0.39
 Interest received  13.82 6.12
 Rent Received  2.63 0.06
 Dividend received  0.00 0.06
 Net cash generated from / (used in) Inves�ng Ac�vi�es (B)  (-)513.58 (-)250.72
   
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
 Receipt of Other long term borrowings  7.50 0.00
 Repayment of long term borrowings  (-)94.70 (-)297.95
 (Repayment) / Proceeds from short term borrowings   -    0.00
 Interest Paid  (-)187.32 (-)153.68
 Net cash (used in) Financing ac�vi�es (C)  (-)274.52 (-)451.63
   
 Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (-)9.23 21.03
   
 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year  44.39 22.54
   
 Unrealised foreign exchange fluctua�on gain  0.01 0.82
 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year   35.17 44.39

stStandalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31  March, 2024

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st31 March 2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 3March 202
₹ (Lakh)
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 Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents  
 Cash on hand 1.20 1.01
 Balance with schedule banks  
   In Current Account 4.98 8.58
   Debit Balance in Cash Credit Account 28.99 34.79
 Cash and Cash Equivalents (As per Note No.17) 35.17 44.39

stStandalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31  March, 2024

Par�culars

 

For the year ended 
st31 March 2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 3March 202
₹ (Lakh)

Notes:  
(i) Figures in the brackets represents cash ou�low. 
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For CNK & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 101961W/W – 100036 

Pareen Shah 
Partner 
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 
stfor the year ended 31  March, 2024

NOTE 1 - CORPORATE INFORMATION
 
 TML Industries Limited (CIN : U74120GJ1989PLC012329) is a public limited company engaged in 

Manufacturing of Chemicals comprising of Industrial and Specialty chemicals and Intermediates at its 
facili�es located at Piludra and Karakhadi in Gujarat, India. The Company also undertakes toll manufacturing 
ac�vi�es. The Company is ISO cer�fied holding cer�fica�ons ISO 9001:2015 for Quality Management 
System, ISO 14001:2015 for Environment Management System and ISO 45001: 2018 for Occupa�onal 
Health and Safety Management System from TÜV Rheinland cer�fica�on body.

 
NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 2.1  Basis of Prepara�on of Financial Statements: 
 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 

Accoun�ng Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accoun�ng Standards specified under 
Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2021 and 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act")  as applicable. The accoun�ng policies 
adopted in the prepara�on of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous 
year.

 
 2.2  Use of Es�mates
 The prepara�on  of the financial statements in conformity with  Indian GAAP  requires the Management to 

make es�mates and assump�ons considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es (including 
con�ngent liabili�es) and the reported income and expenses during the year.  The Management believes 
that the es�mates used in prepara�on of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.  Future 
results could differ due to these es�mates and the differences between the actual results and the es�mates 
are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.

 
 2.3  Property, Plant & Equipment
 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost except freehold land which is revalued as per revalua�on 

model, less accumulated deprecia�on and impairment, if any. Costs directly a�ributable to acquisi�on are 
capitalized un�l the Property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by management. 
Borrowing cost rela�ng to  acquisi�on of Property Plant and equipment which takes substan�al period of 
�me to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate  to the period �ll such assets 
ready to be put to use.

 
 Subsequent expenditures rela�ng to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable 

that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and 
loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated deprecia�on are eliminated from the financial 
statements upon sale or re�rement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the 
fair value less cost to sell.

 
 The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their es�mated useful lives using the 

straight-line method. In case the cost of part of assets is significant to total cost of assets and useful life of 
that part is different from the useful life of the remaining assets, the useful life of the significant part has 
been determined separately.

 
 Deprecia�on on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on the Straight Line Method on the basis of useful 

life as prescribed in the Schedule-II to the Companies Act, 2013.
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 Deprecia�on methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial 
year end.

 
 Advances paid towards the acquisi�on of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet 

date is classified as capital advances under “Long Term Loans and advances” and the cost of assets not put to 
use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’.

 
 Capital work-in-progress:
 Capital work-in-progress is carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses.
 
 2.4  Intangible assets:
 Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amor�za�on and impairment losses, if any. The cost of 

an intangible asset comprises its purchase price and any directly a�ributable expenditure on making the 
asset ready for its intended use.

 
 (ii) Intangible Assets are amor�sed and  charged to the Statement  of Profit & Loss  as under.
                 So�ware    :  over 5 years
                 Capital contribu�on and Technical Know How  :  over 10 years

 The es�mated useful life of the intangible assets and the amor�sa�on period are reviewed at the end of 
each financial year and the amor�sa�on method is revised to reflect the changed pa�ern.

 
 2.5  Inventories
 Raw Materials, packing materials and fuel are valued at Cost and Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. 

Cost is determined on First In First Out Basis. However, material and other items held for use in produc�on of 
inventories are not wri�en down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are 
expected to be sold at or above cost.

 
 Finished goods and work in progress are valued at Cost and Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower.
 
 Stores and Spares are valued at Cost and Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. Cost is determined on 

First In First Out Basis.
 
 2.6  Investments
 Non-Current Investments (excluding investment proper�es), are carried individually at cost less provision 

for diminu�on, other than temporary, in the value of such investments.
 
 2.7  Foreign Currency Transac�ons
 (i)  Transac�ons denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the 

�me of the transac�on.

 (ii)  Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates.

 (iii)  Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on se�lement or on restatement is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss  except in cases when they relate to acquisi�on of fixed 
assets in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

 
 2.8  Revenue Recogni�on
 
 Sale of goods
 Sales are recognized, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risks and rewards of 

ownership to the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers. Sales exclude 
Goods and Service Tax.
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 Job Work 
 Income by way of Job work is accounted on accrual basis as per the terms of Agreement.
 
 Income from Sale of Wind Operated Power Generators
 Income from Sale of Wind Operated Power is accounted on accrual basis on confirma�on of units generated 

and supplied to the State Electricity Board.
 
 Export Incen�ves
 Export incen�ve are accounted for export of goods if en�tlements can be es�mated with reasonable 

accuracy and condi�ons precedent to claim are fulfilled.
 
 2.9  Other income:
 Interest income
 Interest income is accounted on accrual basis.
 
 Dividend income 
 Dividend Income is accounted for when the right to receive it is established.
 
 2.10  Employee Benefits
 Employee benefits include provident fund, superannua�on fund, workman compensa�on policy, gratuity 

fund, employee state insurance scheme ,compensated absences. 
 
 Defined contribu�on plans
 The Company's contribu�on to provident fund, superannua�on fund and employee state insurance scheme 

are considered as defined contribu�on plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of 
contribu�on required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

 
 Defined benefit plans
 For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 

Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valua�ons being carried out at each balance sheet date. 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they 
occur. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and 
otherwise is amor�sed on a straight-line basis over the average period un�l the benefits become vested. 
The re�rement benefit obliga�on recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the 
defined benefit obliga�on as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost,  as reduced by the fair value of 
scheme assets. Any asset resul�ng from this calcula�on is limited to past service cost, plus the present value 
of available refunds and reduc�ons in future contribu�ons to the schemes.

 
 Short-term employee benefits
 The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 

rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These 
benefits include compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months a�er the end of 
the period in which the employee renders the related service. 

 The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under :
 (a)     in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase  

their en�tlement of future compensated absences; and

 (b)     in case of non-accumula�ng compensated absences, when the absences occur.
 
 Long-term employee benefits
 Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months a�er the end of the period in 

which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the 
defined benefit obliga�on as at the balance sheet date less the fair value of the plan assets out of which the 
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obliga�ons are expected to be se�led. Long Service Awards are recognised as a liability at the present value 
of the defined benefit obliga�on as at the balance sheet date.

 
 2.11  Borrowing Costs
 Borrowing costs include interest and amor�sa�on of ancillary costs incurred.  Costs in connec�on with the 

borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisi�on of qualifying assets are charged to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and u�lised for 
qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of ac�vi�es rela�ng to construc�on / 
development of the qualifying asset up to the date of capitalisa�on of such asset are added to the cost of the 
assets. Capitalisa�on of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
during extended periods when ac�ve development ac�vity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

 
 2.12  Taxes on Income 
 Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance 

with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.
 
 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with  the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in 

the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance 
Sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

 
 "Deferred tax is recognised on �ming differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the 

accoun�ng income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent 
periods.  Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substan�vely enacted as 
at the repor�ng date.   Deferred tax liabili�es are recognised for all �ming differences. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised for �ming differences of items other than unabsorbed deprecia�on and carry forward losses 
only to the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which these can be realised. However, if there are unabsorbed deprecia�on and carry forward of 
losses and items rela�ng to capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty 
supported by convincing evidence that there will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise the 
assets. Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same 
governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date for their realisability.”

 
 2.13  Impairment of Assets
 The carrying values of assets / cash genera�ng units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for 

impairment. If any indica�on of  impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is es�mated and 
impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by 
discoun�ng the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When 
there is indica�on that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier accoun�ng periods no longer 
exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, except in case of revalued assets.

 
 2.14  Provision, Con�ngent Liabili�es and Con�ngent Assets
 A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obliga�on as a result of past events and it is 

probable that an ou�low of resources will be required to se�le the obliga�on in respect of which a reliable 
es�mate can be made. Provisions (excluding re�rement benefits) are not discounted to their present value 
and are determined based on the best es�mate required to se�le the obliga�on at the balance sheet date. 
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best es�mates. 
Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed in the Notes. Con�ngent assets are not recognised in the financial 
statements.
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 2.15  Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)
 Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances 

(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisi�on), highly liquid investments 
that are readily conver�ble into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

 
 2.16  Opera�ng Lease
 Where the Company is the lessee :
 Leases where the lessor effec�vely retains subsen�ally all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased 

term are classified as opera�ng leases. Opera�ng lease payments are recognised as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

 
 2.17  Earnings per share
 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) a�er tax (including the post tax effect of 

extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing  the profit / (loss) a�er tax (including the post tax effect 
of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net 
of any a�ributable taxes) rela�ng to the dilu�ve poten�al equity shares, by the weighted average number of 
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity 
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilu�ve poten�al equity shares. 

 Poten�al equity shares are deemed to be dilu�ve only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease 
the net profit per share from con�nuing ordinary opera�ons. Poten�al dilu�ve equity shares are deemed to 
be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. "

 
 2.18  Opera�ng Cycle
 Based on the nature of products / ac�vi�es of the Company and the normal �me between acquisi�on of 

assets and their realisa�on in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its opera�ng cycle as 
12 months for the purpose of classifica�on of its assets and liabili�es as current and non-current.

 
 2.19  Segment Repor�ng
 The Company iden�fies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and 

the internal organisa�on and management structure. The opera�ng segments are the segments for which 
separate financial informa�on is available and for which opera�ng profit / loss amounts are evaluated 
regularly by the execu�ve Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing 
performance.

 
 The accoun�ng policies adopted for segment repor�ng are in line with the accoun�ng policies of the 

Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabili�es have been 
iden�fied to segments on the basis of their rela�onship to the opera�ng ac�vi�es of the segment. 

 
 Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transac�ons which are primarily determined based on 

market / fair value factors.
 
 Revenue, expenses, assets and liabili�es which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to 

segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / 
liabili�es.

 
 2.20  Cash flow statement
 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) a�er extraordinary items and tax 

is adjusted for the effects of transac�ons of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
cash receipts or payments and taxes. The cash flows from opera�ng, inves�ng and financing ac�vi�es of the 
Company are segregated based on the available informa�on.
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NOTE 3 - SHARE CAPITAL

Par�culars

stAs at 31 March-2024

Number ₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023

Number ₹ (Lakh)

Authorized       

Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each with vo�ng rights  1,00,00,000   1,000.00   1,00,00,000   1,000.00  

      

  Total 1,00,00,000   1,000.00   1,00,00,000  1,000.00  

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Shares      

Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each fully paid with vo�ng rights  52,50,000   525.00  52,50,000 525.00 

      

  Total  52,50,000   525.00  52,50,000  525.00 

a.  Reconcilia�on of Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor�ng period;

Par�culars

stAs at 31 March-2024

Number ₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023

Number ₹ (Lakh)

Shares at the beginning of the year   52,50,000   52.50   52,50,000   525.00  

Shares Issued during the year    -     -     -     -    

Shares bought back during the year   -     -     -     -    

Shares outstanding at the end of the year   52,50,000   52.50   52,50,000   525.00

Equity Shares

b.  Terms & Rights a�ached to each class of shares

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is en�tled to one vote per share. In the event of the liquida�on of the Company, the holders of equity 
shares will be en�tled to receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribu�on will be in propor�on to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c.  Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Class of Shares / Name of Shareholder 

stAs at 31 March-2024

Number of 
Shares 

stAs at 31 March-2023

Excel Industries Limited   8,88,750   16.93   8,88,750   16.93  

Madison Investments Private Limited   6,56,500   12.50   6,56,500   12.50  

Dipkan� Invesments and Financing Private Limited   5,25,750   10.01   5,25,750   10.01  

Agrocel Industries Private Limited   4,39,000   8.36   4,39,000   8.36  

Ravi Ashwin Shroff   3,06,500   5.84   3,06,500   5.84  

Hrishit Ashwin Shroff   3,05,000   5.81   3,05,000   5.81

Equity Shares

% of 
Holding 

Number of 
Shares 

% of 
Holding 
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d.      Details of Promoter's Shareholders holding in the Company

Class of Shares / Name of Shareholder 

stAs at 31 March-2024

Number of 
Shares 

stAs at 31 March-2023

% of 
change 
during 

the year

% of 
total 

shares

Number of 
Shares 

% of 
change 
during 

the year

% of 
total 

shares

Agrocel Industries Private Limited  4,39,000   8.36  0.00  4,39,000   8.36  0.00

Ami Kan�sen Shroff  7,500   0.14  0.00  7,500   0.14  0.00

Anshul Amrish Bha�a  25,300   0.48  0.00  25,300   0.48  0.00
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Class of Shares / Name of Shareholder 

stAs at 31 March-2024

Number of 
Shares 

stAs at 31 March-2023

% of 
change 
during 

the year

% of 
total 

shares

Number of 
Shares 

% of 
change 
during 

the year

% of 
total 

shares

NOTE 4 - RESERVES & SURPLUS

Capital Redemp�on Reserve (On redemp�on of preference shares)   
Opening/Closing Balance 500.00 500.00
Revalua�on Reserve 
Opening balance 1,201.06 1,201.06
Increase during the year (refer Note 4(1) at below) 632.20 0.00
Closing balance 1,833.26 1,201.06
Securi�es Premium (Created on issue of equity Shares at a premium)
Opening/Closing Balance 760.00 760.00
Sub total   3,093.26 2,461.06
Opening Balance of Statement of Profit and Loss                           (-)5,235.32 (-)5,577.26
Profit / (Loss) during the year (-)210.61 341.94
Closing  Balance of Statement of Profit and Loss   (-)5,445.93 (-)5,235.32   
    Total  (-)2,352.66 (-)2,774.25

Par�culars

As at 
st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

As at 
st31 3March-202
₹ (Lakh)

Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  1,27,000   2.42  0.00  1,27,000   2.42  0.00

Ashwin Champraj Shroff  71,500   1.36  0.00  71,500   1.36  0.00

Atul Dayal  15,500   0.30  0.00  15,500   0.30  0.00

Atul Govindji Shroff  2,28,150   4.35  0.00  2,28,150   4.35  0.19

Atul Govindji Shroff - HUF  -     -     -     -     -    (-)0.19

Chaitanya Dipesh Shroff  10,000   0.19  0.00  10,000   0.19  0.19

Dayal Hiral Tushar  2,43,400   4.64  0.00  2,43,400   4.64  0.00

Dipesh Kan�sen Shroff  21,500   0.41  0.00  21,500   0.41  (-)0.48

Dipkan� investments and Financing Private Limited  5,25,750   10.01  0.00  5,25,750   10.01  0.00

Excel Industries Limited  8,88,750   16.93  0.00  8,88,750   16.93  0.00

Heena L Popat  10,500   0.20  0.00  10,500   0.20  0.00

Hrishit Ashwin Shroff  3,05,000   5.81  0.00  3,05,000   5.81  0.00

Hyderabad Chemicals Limited  5,500   0.10  0.00  5,500   0.10  0.00

Kamaljyot Investments Limited  31,750   0.60  0.00  31,750   0.60  0.00

Krishni Dipesh Shroff  15,000   0.29  0.00  15,000   0.29  0.29

Lalji Popat  500   0.01  0.00  500   0.01  0.00

Madison Investments Private Limited  6,56,500   12.50  0.00  6,56,500   12.50  0.00

Paritosh Dayal  25,700   0.49  0.00  25,700   0.49  0.00

Pra�k Dayal  46,460   0.89  0.00  46,460   0.89  0.00

Pra�pal Investment Private Limited  3,850   0.07  0.00  3,850   0.07  0.00

Pree� Dipesh Shroff  10,000   0.19  0.00  10,000   0.19  0.00

Ravi Ashwin Shroff  3,06,500   5.84  0.00  3,06,500   5.84  0.00

Shru� A Shroff  1,32,470   2.52  0.00  1,32,470   2.52  0.00

Tushar Charandas Dayal  7,700   0.15  0.00  7,700   0.15  0.00

Tushar Charandas Dayal HUF  2,34,050   4.46  0.00  2,34,050   4.46  0.00

Usha Ashwin Shroff  25,000   0.48  0.00  25,000   0.48  0.00

Vishwa Atul Shroff  27,500   0.52  0.00  27,500   0.52  0.00

 Total  44,47,330   84.71  0.00  44,47,330   84.71  0.00
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Note 4 (1) REVALUATION OF FREEHOLD LAND

During the year, the Company's freehold land situated at Piludra and Karakhadi factories have been valued 
through government approved valuer M/s. Harsh Purani. The value of land is decided by comparing the sale of 
similar land in the neighborhood loca�on and the situa�on of land, ra�o of frontage of depth, proximity if civic 
ameni�es, power, road frontage premium.

The revalua�on has resulted into increase in the value of land by Rs 632.20 Lakh as per details below.

Asset block : Freehold Land (refer Note 11)   
Value of Land before revalua�on  932.00   365.00   1,297.00
Increase in the value due to revalua�on  559.20   73.00   632.20
Value of Land a�er revalua�on  1,491.20   438.00   1,929.20

Par�culars
TML Karakhadi 

Factory
₹ (Lakh)

Total
₹ (Lakh)

TML 
Piludra Factory

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 5 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Par�culars

stAs at 31 March-2024

Total

stAs at 31 March-2023

(a)   Secured Loan       
Term Loan      
From Banks (Refer Note (A) below)  31.35   -     31.35   126.05   31.34   94.71 
(b) Unsecured Loans:      
Inter Corporate Deposits (Refer Note (B) below)  2,200.00   2,200.00   -     2,200.00   2,200.00   -   
From Directors (Refer Note (C) below)  1,148.48   1,148.48   -     1,148.48   1,148.48   -   
From Promotors (Refer Note (D) below)  1,845.17   1,845.17   -     1,837.67   1,837.67   -   
Sub total  5,225.00   5,193.65   31.35   5,312.20   5,217.49   94.71 
      
Less: Amount disclosed under the head 
"Short Term Borrowings" (Note 7)  31.35   -     31.35   94.71   -     94.71 
      
  Total  5,193.65  5,193.65   -     5,217.49   5,217.49   -   

Current 
Por�on

Non-
Current 
Por�on

Total Current 
Por�on

Non-
Current 
Por�on

₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)

Note No.(A) Details of security and terms of repayment:

(i) Nature of Security

(a)  The term loan of kotak (Term Loan - 1) is secured by first and exclusive charge by way of an equitable 
mortgage on commercial offices at Baroda and first charge on industrial units at Karakhadi. Further the 
above the loan is secured by way of  Second charge on all exis�ng and future current assets of the borrower.

(b)  The term loan of Kotak (Term Loan - 2) is secured under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line  (GECL) under 
ECLGS scheme of Na�onal Credit  Guarantee Trustee Company Ltd  which is secured by second charge on 
Commercial offices at Baroda and industrial units at Karakhadi. 
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(ii) Term of repayments from banks are as below: 

Note No.(B) Inter- corporate deposits      
The rate of interest on above loans ranges from 11.00% to 13.00%. As represented by the company, the above loans 
are repayable a�er the tenure of  one  year.      
      
Note No.(C) Loan from Directors      
The Company has received the amount from persons who were Directors at the �me of receipt of the amount. The 
rate of Interest on above loans is 11.00%. As represented by the Company, the above loans are repayable a�er the 
tenure of one year.      
      
Note No.(D) Loan from Promotors      
The Company has received the amount from Promoters of the Company in pursuance of the s�pula�on of bank 
loan. The rate of Interest on above loans is 11.00%. As represented by the company, the above loans are repayable 
a�er the tenure of one year.

NOTE 6 - LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Par�culars

stAs at 31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

Provision for Employee Benefits :
Gratuity (Refer note 28.1)
Provision for Compensated Absences (Refer Note 28.1)

331.09
63.59

394.68

297.49
50.33

347.82Total

NOTE 7 - SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Par�culars

Current Maturi�es of Long Term Debts (Refer Note 5)                                 31.35                                 94.71 

                                31.35                                 94.71 

Par�culars

stAs at 31 March-2024 stAs at 31 March-2023

Installment 
(Monthly) 

Rate of 
Interest

Rate of 
Interest

₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited-(Term Loan-1)

Kotak MSME Term Loan-(Term Loan-2)

 -   

 31.35 

 -   

7.85%

 -   

Rs.4.60
upto 

Oct 2024

 44.20 

 81.85 

12.50%

7.85%

Rs.22.67 
upto 

June 2023

Rs.4.60 
upto 

Oct 2024

Total  31.35  126.05 

Installment 
(Monthly) 

NOTE 8 - TRADE PAYABLES

Par�culars

Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises (Refer 
Note No. 28.8)   Total  outstanding  dues  of  trade  payables  
other  than micro  and  small enterprises   

41.55

741.13

782.68Total

36.77

839.68

876.45

stAs at 31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

Total

stAs at 31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)
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Trade Payable Ageing Summary

Par�culars

stAs at 31  March, 2024
MSME
Others
Disputed Dues - MSME
Disputed Dues - Others

Total Payable

stAs at 31  March, 2023
MSME
Others
Disputed Dues - MSME
Disputed Dues - Others

Total Payable

< 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years  > 3 Years Total

 41.55 
 741.13 

 -   
 -   

 782.68 

 36.77 
 837.04 

 -   
 -   

 873.81 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 0.02 

 -   
 -   

 0.02 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 0.81 

 -   
 -   

 0.81 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 1.81 

 -   
 -   

 1.81 

 41.55 
 741.13 

 -   
 -   

 782.68 

 36.77 
 839.68 

 -   
 -   

 876.45 
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NOTE 9 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest payables  
Interest Accrued and due on deposits  2,399.19   1,992.82 
Interest on dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 28.8)  -     0.23 
  
Other payables   
Payable for Capital Expenditure  -     0.12 
Unclaimed Fixed Deposits  -     3.00 
Unclaimed Interest on Fixed Deposits  0.38   0.62 
Security Deposit  -     0.71 
Advance from Customer  0.05   1.00 
Statutory Dues Payables  107.86   86.29 
Salary and Wages payable  82.82   72.83 
Other Payables  111.72   97.51 
    Total  2,702.02 2,255.14

Par�culars

As at 
st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

As at 
st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 10 - SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Employee Benefits   
Gratuity (Refer Note 28.1) 35.84 28.63
Compensated Absences (Refer Note 28.1) 8.96 7.08
Provision for Bonus  26.28 23.04
    Total 71.09 58.75

Par�culars

As at 
st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

As at 
st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)



TML
 TML Industries Limited     

NOTE 11 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a)(i) Property, Plant and Equipment

 1,297.00 

 1,584.30 

 6,174.35 

 

105.43 

 47.02 

 179.01 

 

183.01

 9,570.12 

 10,171.77 

 

Freehold land 

(*)

Buildings

Plant and 

equipment

Furniture and 

fixtures

Vehicles

Office 

equipment

Electrical 

installa�ons

 

Total

Previous Year

(*) Freehold land situated at Piludra and Karakhadi factories are measured at revalua�on model. Also refer Note 4 (1)

 632.20 

 2.61 

 295.06 

 5.87

 

 -   

 45.01 

 

0.92 

 

981.67 

 14.45 

 -   

 -   

 117.39

 

 -

   

 -   

 - 

  

 - 

  

 117.39 

 616.10 

 1,929.20 

 1,586.90 

 6,352.02 

 111.31 

 

47.02 

 224.02 

 183.93 

 

10,434.40 

 9,570.12 

 -   

 880.66 

 4,451.84 

 

102.34 

 17.30 

 162.87 

 

182.04 

 5,797.04 

 6,140.01 

 -   

 48.27 

 197.76 

 0.71 

 

3.88 

 14.18 

 0.82 

 265.61 

 251.80 

 -   

 -   

 93.97 

 

-   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 

93.97 

 594.77 

 -   

 928.92 

 4,555.62 

 

103.04 

 21.18 

 177.05 

 

182.86 

 

5,968.68 

 5,797.04 

 1,929.20 

 657.98 

 1,796.40 

 

8.27 

 

25.84 

 46.97 

 

1.08 

 

4,465.73 

 3,773.08 

 1,297.00 

 703.64 

 1,722.51 

 

3.10 

 

29.72 

 16.14 

 

0.98 

 

3,773.08 

 4,031.76 

 24.17 

 97.40 

 

233.27 

 -   

 

354.85 

 354.12 

So�ware

Capital 

contribu�on 

Technical 

know How

Membership 

contribu�on

Total

Previous Year

 

 0.35 

 6.61 

 

-   

 

2.00 

 8.96 

 0.72 

 -   

 -   

 

-   

 

-   

 

-   

 -   

 24.52 

 104.02 

 

233.27 

 

2.00 

 

363.81 

 354.85 

 23.28 

 91.69 

 

233.27 

 -   

 

348.25 

 343.46 

 0.45 

 7.04 

 -   

 

0.40 

 

7.89 

 4.78 

 23.73 

 98.73 

 

233.27 

 

0.40 

 

356.13 

 348.25 

 0.79 

 5.29 

 -   

 

1.60 

 

7.68 

 6.60 

 0.89 

 5.71 

 

-   

 

-   

 

6.60 

 10.66 

(a)(ii) Intangible Assets

 -   

 -   

 

-   

 

-   

 

-   

 -   

NOTE 11 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

  (a)(iii) Capital 

Work-In-Progress

Plant and 

equipment

Total 

Previous Year 

Total 

 330.96 

 330.96 

 38.48 

 10,255.93 

 122.77 

 122.77 

 292.48 

 1,113.40 

 342.87 

 342.87 

 -   

 460.26 

 110.86 

 110.86 

 330.96 

 10,909.07 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 6,145.29 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 273.50 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 6,324.81 

 110.86 

 110.86 

 330.96 

 4,584.26 

 330.96 

 330.96 

 18.20 

 4,110.64 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 93.97 

Descrip�on GROSS BLOCK (AT COST EXCEPT LAND) DEPRECIATION / AMORTIZATION NET BLOCK
 

  ₹ (Lakh) 

Addi�ons 
during  

the year 

₹ (Lakh) 

Dispo-
sals 

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) 

cia�on / 
Depre-

amor�-
sa�on 
for the 

year 
₹ (Lakh) 

Elimina-
ted on  

disposal 
of assets

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) 

GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) DEPRECIATION / AMORTIZATION NET BLOCK

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) 

Descrip�on
Addi�ons 

during  
the year 

Dispo-
sals 

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) 

Depre
cia�on / 
amor�s
a�on 
for the 
year

-

-

 
₹ (Lakh) 

Elimina-
ted on  

disposal 
of assets

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) 

As at
st1 April

-2023

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 April

-2023

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 March
-2023

As at
st1 April

-2023

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 April

-2023

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 March
-2023
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Capital Work-In-Progress / Intangible assets under development Ageing

Par�culars

Amount in CWIP / Intangible Assets under 
development for a period of

< 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  > 3 Years 

As at  31st March, 2024          

Projects in progress   109.13   1.73   -      -    

Projects temporarily suspended   -     -     -      -    

As at  31st March, 2023          

Projects in progress   292.48   20.28   18.20    -    

Projects temporarily suspended   -     -     -      -

Capital Work-In-Progress / Intangible assets under development Comple�on

CWIP / Intangible Assets under development

Amount in CWIP / Intangible Assets under 
development for a period of

< 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  > 3 Years 

As at  31st March, 2024          

Project 1 - CaCl2 system   7.59   -     -      -    

Project 2 - ECH Expansion 50 T   97.66   1.73   -      -    

Project 3 - ECH Process Development Pilot Plant-2   3.88   -     -      -    

As at  31st March, 2023          

Project 1 - 3CPC Produc�on facility   37.78   12.93   18.20    -    

Project 2 - SCADA system for ETP   6.06   7.35   -      -    

Project 3 - ECH Produc�on facility 2 TPD   215.96   -     -      -    

Project 4 - Stack Monitoring System   30.95   -     -      -    

Project 5 - ECH Expansion 50 T   1.73   -     -      -  

NOTE 12 - NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Trade Investment in Subsidiaries (unquoted)  
 Oasis Agritech Ltd  5.00 5.00
 (50,000 Equity share of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)   
 Provision for Diminu�on in Investment  (-)5.00 (-)5.00
     -     -   
 Other than Trade Investments (unquoted)   
 Praga� Sahakari Bank Limited  0.50 0.50
 (5,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)   
 The Alkapuri Arcade Premises Owners Co-op Soc Ltd  0.02 0.02
 (30 Shares of Rs. 50/- each fully paid up)   
 Hunnar Shaala Founda�on for Building Technology and Innova�ons  0.15 0.15
 (1,500 Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)   
 Enviro Infrastructure Co. Limited  5.00 5.00
 (50,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up)   

 Investment in Government Securi�es   
  Na�onal Saving Cer�ficate     -    0.06  
     Total  5.67 5.73
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 10.67 10.73
Aggregate provision for diminu�on in value of investments 5.00 5.00

Par�culars

As at 
st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

As at 
st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)
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Par�culars

 TML Industries Limited  
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured, considered good  
Capital Advances 23.63 27.35
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provisions) 111.11 179.27
  
     Total  134.73 206.62

Par�culars

NOTE 14 -  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Security Deposits  94.98 89.16
Margin Money Deposit under lien to bank for non fund based limits 5.08 4.89 
and having maturity of more than 12 months  
  
     Total  100.06 94.05

Par�culars

NOTE 15  - INVENTORIES

Raw Materials   13.83 19.83
Packing Materials  2.04 2.11
Fuel Materials  2.15  1.58 
Stores and Spares   113.52 102.07
Semi Finished goods  58.76 51.81
Finished Goods  69.42  33.96
    Sub-Total (A) 259.72 211.36
Provision For Obsolesces
Stores and Spares   (-)5.82 (-)5.82
    Sub-Total (B) (-)5.82 (-)5.82
    Total (A +B) 253.89 205.54

NOTE 16 - TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Trade Receivables - Unsecured, Considered Good  317.13   279.74  
Less: Provision for Doub�ul Debts 0.49 4.24 

Total   316.63   275.51     

Par�culars

Trade Receivables Ageing Summary

Par�culars
< 6 

Months

As at 31st March, 2024      
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good  315.87   -     0.64   0.52   0.10   317.13 
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Doub�ul  -     -     -     -     -     -   
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good    -     -     -     -     -     -   
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Doub�ul  -     -     -     -     -     -   
     315.87   -     0.64   0.52   0.10   317.13 
Less: Provision for Doub�ul Debts  -     -     0.16   0.26   0.07   0.49 
    Total Trade Receivables  315.87   -     0.48   0.26   0.02   316.63

1-2 
Years

6 Months- 

1 year
2-3 

Years
> 3 Years Total

stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)
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Trade Receivables Ageing Summary

Par�culars
< 6 

Months

As at 31st March, 2023      
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good    273.06   0.19   0.52   1.50   4.47   279.74 
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Doubful  -     -     -     -     -     -   
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good    -     -     -     -     -     -   
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Doubful  -     -     -     -     -     -   
     273.06   0.19   0.52   1.50   4.47   279.74 
Less: Provision for Doub�ul Debts  -     -     0.13   0.75   3.35  4.24
    Total Trade Receivables  273.06   0.19   0.39   0.75   1.12   275.51

1-2 
Years

6 Months- 

1 year

2-3 
Years

> 3 Years Total

NOTE 17 - CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and Cash Equivalents  
Cash on Hand  1.20 1.01
Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 4.98 8.58
Balance with Cash Credit Accounts (refer Note no (A)  28.99 34.79
    35.17 44.39
Balances with Banks  
(i) In Deposit Accounts 
     (amount kept as Liquid Assets with Scheduled Banks)  434.43 3.81
  
     Total  469.61 48.20
Of the above, the balances that meet the defini�on of Cash and 
Cash Equivalents as per AS 3 Cash Flow Statements i.e. Cash on 
Hand plus Balance in Current & CC Accounts 35.17 44.39

Par�culars

Note No. (A) Details of Security for the Secured Short-Term Borrowings:

Working Capital facili�es from IDBI Bank Ltd. 
Working capital facility on Cash Credit account is secured by first pari-passu charge by way of hypotheca�on on 
en�re current assets and second pari-passu charge on fixed assets at Piludra and Karakhadi plants of the Company. 
The rate of interest ranges from 12.80% to 13.25%.

NOTE 18 - SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured, Considered Good  
Balance with Government Authori�es  2.29 3.82
Deposits    9.29  -   
Prepaid Expenses   41.24 51.13
Advance to Suppliers  15.52 16.93
     Total   68.34 71.88

Par�culars

NOTE 19 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Accrued Interest Income  8.25 4.83
Other Receivables  40.36 212.11
     Total   48.61 216.94

Par�culars
stAs at 31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)
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stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

st
As at 31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

st
As at 31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)
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NOTE 20 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Sale of Products (Refer Note 20(i)) 332.11 645.74
Job Work Income 4,729.24 5,088.55
     Total Revenue from Opera�ons 5,061.34 5,734.29

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 20 (i) - Sale of Product comprises of:

Manufactured Goods:  
Acid Chloride and Others 332.11 645.74
     Total - Sale of Products 332.11 645.74

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 21 - OTHER INCOME

Interest Income (Refer Note Below) 17.24 6.12
Other Non Opera�ng Income (Refer Note Below) 195.09 205.22
Reversal of Provision for Doub�ul Debts 3.74  -   
Sales - Scrap  0.44 6.86
Dividend Income   -    0.06
Rent Income  2.63 0.06
     Total  219.15   218.32 

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

Interest Income comprises:  
Interest from Banks on Deposits 1.14 0.39
Interest on Income Tax Refund 10.49  -   
Other Interest 5.61 5.73
     Total - Interest Income 17.24 6.12
Other Non-Opera�ng Income comprises:  
Profit on sale of assets (net)  12.09 40.44
Wind Power Income  182.99 163.66
Special Discount on Purchase   -    0.31
Gain  on Foreign Exchange Fluctua�on (Net)  0.01  0.82
Miscellaneous balance wri�en back (net)   -    0.00
    Total - Other non-opera�ng Income 195.09 205.22

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 22 - COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

Opening stock 19.83 4.13
Add: Purchases 110.14 120.42
    129.97 124.55
Less: Closing stock 13.83 19.83
     Total 116.14 104.73

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st
31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st

31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)
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NOTE 22(i) - COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED COMPRISES OF : 

Ace�c Acid & Chlorinated Ace�c Acids  116.14 104.73

     Total 116.14 104.73

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 23 - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND SEMI FINISHED GOODS

Inventories at the end of the Year:  

Finished Goods 69.42 33.96

Work In Progress 58.76 51.81

    128.17 85.77

Inventories at the Beginning of the Year:  

Finished Goods 33.96  -   

Work In Progress 51.81 26.52

    85.77 26.52

     Net (Increase) / Decrease (-)42.40 (-)59.25

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 24 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Wages  and Bonus   1,078.44   882.74 

Contribu�ons to Provident Fund and other Funds   179.97   157.28 

Staff Welfare Expenses   166.47   165.49 

     Total  1,424.87   1,205.50

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 25 - FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on:  

(i) Borrowings   585.46   608.98 

(ii) Cash Credit    4.08   5.76 

(iii) Others    0.02   13.68 

Other Borrowing Costs   3.92   8.51 

     Total  593.47   636.93

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st

31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st

31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 26 - OTHER EXPENSES 

Consump�on of Power & Fuel   932.15   914.15 

Consump�on of Stores & Spares   3.51   12.71 

Consump�on of Packing Materials   11.52   2.98 

Payments to Contractors   538.59   439.55 

Provision for Doub�ul Debts   -     4.24 

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)
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Payments to the Auditors Comprises:  

Statutory Audit Fees 5.00 5.00

Cer�fica�on Fees 0.08 0.10

Other Ma�ers 0.35  - 

     Total 5.43 5.10

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 27  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

(a) Con�ngent Liabili�es      

(i) Bank Guarantees issued by bank on behalf of Company for 

which company has issued counter guarantee  2.65 2.65

      

(b) Claims against the company not acknowledge as debts:      

(i) Disputed Income Tax Liability  -    10.84

(ii) Disputed Labour Law & Other Cases (*) 6.00 6.00

 (*) As represented by management, there are some other 

 ongoing cases for which amount is not ascertainable.     

     Total 8.65 19.49

(c) Commitments      

(I) Es�mated amount of  Contracts  to  be executed on capital 

 account and not provided for  23.63 46.34

 Advances paid for the same  23.63 27.35

Par�culars

As at
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

As at 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 27.1 Con�ngent Liabili�es and Capital Commitments

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

Repairs & Maintenance : Building   4.19   9.46 

Repairs & Maintenance : Plant & Machinery   43.98   18.22 

Repairs & Maintenance : Others   35.78   29.58 

Rates and Taxes   7.06   10.28 

Insurance     42.17   36.09 

Legal and Professional Fees   30.71   37.25 

Effluent Discharge Expenses   85.64   79.48 

By-product Discharge Expenses   403.06   898.94 

Environment Monitoring Expenses   23.92   27.84 

Payments to Auditors (Refer Note Below)   5.43   5.10 

Wind Mill Maintenance Charges   50.35   34.13 

Rent for Machineries (Refer Note 28.4)   792.00   792.00 

Miscellaneous Expenses   115.47   111.18 

     Total  3,125.52   3,463.17
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NOTE 27.2 
In current year, the Company has not entered into any Forward Contract with its Bankers. Also, there are no open 

stForward Contracts at the year end. Foreign Currency Exposure not hedged by deriva�ve instruments as on 31  
stMarch, 2024 and 31  March, 2023  is  as  follows:     

Raw materials  -     42.00 

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

Par�culars Currency Amount in 
Foreign 

currency (*)

stAs at 31 March-2024 stAs at 31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

Amount in 
Foreign 

currency (*) ₹ (Lakh)

Cash Balances USD 957.00 0.80 957.00 0.79
  Chinese Yuan  62.00 0.01 62.00 0.01
  GB Pound 25.20 0.03 25.20 0.03
  Egyp�an Pound (**) 17.00 0.00 17.00 0.00
  EURO 19.80 0.02 19.80 0.02

 NOTE 27.3 (a) Value of imports calculated on C.I.F.basis by Company during the financial year in respect of

 NOTE 27.4 (b) Details of consump�on of imported and indigenous items 

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

%

Imported-Raw materials  -    0% 46.60 44%
Indigenous-Raw materials 116.14 100% 58.13 56%
Indigenous-Spare parts 3.51 100% 12.71 100%
  Total 119.65  117.44

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

%₹ (Lakh)

 NOTE 27.5 Expenditure in Foreign Currency :

Travelling expenses  -     -

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

 NOTE 27.6 Earnings in Foreign Currency :

FOB Value of Exports  -     -

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)
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NOTE 28 
Disclosures under Accoun�ng  Standards as prescribed under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2021      

NOTE 28.1 Disclosures under Accoun�ng Standard - 15 (Employee Benefits)      
       
 Accoun�ng Standard 15 on 'Employee Benefits'  as  prescribed under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2021.      
       
 Defined contribu�on plans      
 The Company makes Provident Fund and Superannua�on Fund contribu�ons to defined contribu�on plans for 
qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the 
payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contribu�ons payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified 
in the rules of the schemes.      

Par�culars

Provident Fund Superannua�on Fund

Defined benefit plans      
The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:      
i. Gratuity      
ii. Leave Encashment      
      
The following table sets out the funded status of the gratuity and leave encashment and the amount recognised in 
the financial statements:      

Par�culars

Gratuity (Funded)

(i) Defined Benefit Plan     
 Current Service Cost 19.77 18.02 7.50 4.54
 Interest Cost on Benefit Obliga�on 25.47 21.98 3.98 3.44
 Expected (Return)/Loss on Plan Assets   (-)2.42 (-)2.67  -     -   
 Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 30.25 21.98 10.14 5.53
 Total Expense recognized during the year  73.07 59.31 21.62 13.52
      
(ii) Reconcilia�on of Opening and Closing 
 Balance of Obliga�on 
 Obliga�on  361.99 322.29 57.40 53.56
 Current Service Cost 19.77 18.02 7.50 4.54
 Interest Cost 25.47 21.98 3.98 3.44
 Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 30.08 21.61 10.14 5.53
 Benefits Paid (-)31.49 (-)21.92 (-)6.47 (-)9.68
 PV of Obliga�on  405.82 361.99 72.55 57.40

Leave (Non- Funded)

For the year
ended 

st
31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st
31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st
31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st
31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

stExpense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March-2024 is as under :-

For the year
ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

Contribu�on recognised in the statement 
of Profit and Loss 75.12 69.55 17.51 13.29
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Par�culars

Gratuity (Funded) Leave (Non- Funded)

(iii) Change in Plan Assets     
 Fair Value of Plan Assets  35.87 27.03  -     -   
 Expected Return on Plan Assets 2.42 2.67  -     -   
 Adjustment in Opening Balance (-)1.49  -     -     -   
 Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (-)0.17 (-)0.37  -     -   
 Contribu�ons 33.00 29.00 6.47 9.68
 Cash at Bank 2.91 1.49  
 Expenses debited by the Insurance Co. (-)2.16 (-)2.04  -     -   
 Benefits Paid (-)31.49 (-)21.92 (-)6.47 (-)9.68
 Fair Value of Plan Assets  38.89 35.87  -     -   
      
(iv) Net Liability recognized in the Balance 
 Sheet     
  PV of Obliga�on  405.82 361.99 72.55 57.40
 Fair Value of Plan Assets  38.89 35.87  -     -   
 Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet (-)366.93 (-)326.12 (-)72.55 (-)57.40
      
(v) Principal Actuarial Assump�ons     
 Discount rate  7.11% 7.36% 7.11% 7.36%
 Rate of Return on Plan Assets  6.35% 8.52% - -
 Expected increase in salary cost 3% to 4% 3.00% 3% to 4% 3.00%

Par�culars of Gratuity 2019-20

Defined Benefit Obliga�ons 405.82 361.99 322.29 277.43 246.78
Fair Value of Plan Assets 38.89 35.87 27.03 30.90 38.85
Surplus/(Deficit) in the Plan (-)366.93 (-)326.12 (-)295.26 (-)246.53 (-)207.93
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on the Plan Assets (-)0.17 (-)0.37  0.01   0.05   -   
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on the Plan Obliga�ons 30.08 21.61 32.76 16.21 14.70

Amount Recognised in the current year and previous four years

2020-212021-222022-232023-24

Par�culars of Leave 2019-20

Defined Benefit Obliga�ons 72.55 57.40 59.54 53.40 56.92
Fair Value of Plan Assets  -     -     -     -     -   
Surplus/(Deficit) in the Plan (-)72.55 (-)57.40 (-)59.54 (-)53.40 (-)56.92
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on the Plan Assets  -     -     -     -     -   
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on the Plan Obliga�ons 10.14 5.53 4.31 2.59 0.41

2020-212021-222022-232023-24

Notes:      
1 Discount rate is determined by reference to market yield at the Balance Sheet date on Government Bonds, 

where the currency and terms of the Govt. Bonds are consistent with the currency and es�mated terms for the 
benefit obliga�on.    

 
2 The es�mate of future salary increase take into account infla�on, seniority, promo�on and other relevant 

factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.    
 
3 100% of Plan Assets are invested in Group Gratuity Scheme offered by Life Insurance Corpora�on of India.    
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For the year
ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)
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NOTE 28.2 Disclosures under Accoun�ng Standard - 17 (Segment Repor�ng)      
       
i. Business Segment: The company operates in a single segment as manufacturer of industrial and specialty 

chemicals and intermediates and Job work for its related products "Chemicals".      
       
ii. Secondary Segment: The company mainly caters to domes�c clients and therefore there are no reportable 

geographical segments.     

NOTE 28.3 Disclosures under Accoun�ng Standard -18 (Related Party Disclosures)

(i)   Names of related par�es with descrip�on of rela�onship with whom transac�ons have taken place: 

Name of related par�es

Oasis Agritech Limited

Agrocel Industries Private Limited
Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited
Dipkan� Investments & Financing Private Limited
Excel Bio Resources Limited
Excel Industries Ltd
Kamaljyot Investments Limited
Madison Investments Private Limited
Silox India Private Limited (formerly Transpek Silox Industry Pvt. Ltd.)
Transchem Agritech Private Limited
Transpek Industry Limited
Aatapi Seva Founda�on (up to 10th June,2022)
Pra�pal Investments Private Limited (up to 10th June,2022)
Tushar Dayal HUF (up to 10th June,2022)

Ashwin Shroff
Atul Shroff
Avtar Singh
Dipesh Shoff
L.Rajagopalan
Mukesh Patel
Ravi Shroff
Shak� Mehta
Late Shri Maulik Mehta
Bimal Mehta
Tushar Dayal
Kru� Parekh
Janki Dave

Director
Director
Director
Director
Independent Director
Director
Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Director
Director
Company Secretary
Company Secretary

from 10th June,2022
from 10th June,2022

from 10th June,2022

from 29th June,2023
up to 1st June,2023
up to 10th June,2022
up to 10th June,2022
up to 25th November,2023
from 16th February,2024

Hiral Dayal
Shru� Shroff
Vishwa Shroff
Paritosh Dayal (upto 10th June,2022)
Pra�k Dayal (upto 10th June,2022)

Descrip�on of rela�onship

Subsidiary Companies

Enterprises owned or 
significantly influenced by
key management personnel 
or their rela�ves

Key Management Personnel

Rela�ves of key management 
personnel
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Par�culars

Subsidiary Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced 

by key 
management 
personnel or 

their rela�ves

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
and their 
rela�ves

Previous 
Year's 

amount

 Sale of Goods    -     152.72   -     462.48 
 Job Work Income   -     3,505.90   -     3,927.69 
 Purchase of Goods   -     0.16   -     0.19 
 Reimbursement of Expenses   -     1,226.95   -     1,171.77 
 Rent for Machineries   -     792.00   -     792.00 
 Interest on Deposits   -     199.30   300.74   527.78 
 Professional Fees Paid   -     -     -     9.30 
 Remunera�on Paid   -     -     11.44   6.18 
 Rent Income   -     2.63   -     0.06 
 Rent Deposit   -     0.41   -     -

(ii) Par�culars of Transac�ons with Related Par�es

st (A) Transac�ons with related par�es for the year ended 31 March, 2024 are as follows:

2023-24 2022-23

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh)

 Accounts Payable   -     536.33   0.42   353.84 
 Accounts Receivable   -     329.21   -     410.43 
 Deposits Payable   -     1,800.00   2,733.98   4,786.15 
 Interest Payable on Deposits   -     868.83   1,436.86   1,985.64 

As at 
st31 March-2024

As at 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh)

(B)  Balance Outstanding at the year end:

Par�culars

(A) Transac�ons during the year :    
 Sale of Goods    
 Silox India Pvt Ltd (Formerly Transpek-Silox...)  -     152.72   -     462.48 
     
 Toll Manufacturing / Job Work Income    
 Transpek Industry Limited  -     3,505.90   -     3,927.69 
     
 Purchase of Goods    
 Transchem Agritech Private Limited  -     0.16   -     0.19 

(iii)  Significant transac�ons with related par�es:    

Par�culars

Subsidiary Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced 

by key 
management 
personnel or 

their rela�ves

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
and their 
rela�ves

Previous 
Year's 

amount

2023-24 2022-23

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh)
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Par�culars

Subsidiary Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced 

by key 
management 
personnel or 

their rela�ves

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
and their 
rela�ves

Previous 
Year's 

amount

2023-24 2022-23

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh)

 Reimbursement of Expenses    
 Agrocel Industries Private Limited  -     3.61   -     1.09 
 Transpek Industry Limited  -     1,223.34    1,170.68 
     
 Rent for Machineries    
 Transpek Industry Limited  -     792.00   -     792.00 
     
 Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits    
 Agrocel Industries Private Limited  -     71.50   -     71.50 
 Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  -     93.50   -     93.50 
 Dipkan� Investments & Financing Pvt. Ltd.  -     22.00   -     22.00 
 Excel Bio Resources Limited  -     3.90   -     3.90 
 Kamaljyot Investments Limited  -     8.40   -     8.40 

 Interest on Deposit from KMP (Directors) 
 and Rela�ves of KMP    
 Atul Shroff  -     -     121.00   121.00 
 Dipesh Shroff  -     -     55.00   55.00 
 Hiral Dayal  -     -     47.74   47.74 
 Paritosh Dayal  -     -     -     1.30 
 Pra�k Dayal  -     -     -     6.53 
 Ravi Shroff  -     -     55.00   55.00 
 Shru� Shroff  -     -     22.00   22.00 
 Tushar Dayal   -     -     -     16.33 
 Tushar Dayal HUF  -     -     -     3.58 
     
 Professional Fees Paid    
 Transchem Agritech Private Limited  -     -     -     0.30 
 Tushar Dayal   -     -     -     9.00 
     
 Remunera�on Paid    
 Kru� Parekh  -     -    10.51  6.18 
 Janki Dave  -     -     0.93   -   
     
 Rent Income    
 Aatapi Seva Founda�on  -     -     -     0.06 
 Excel Industries Limited  -     2.63   -     -   
     
 Rent Deposit    
 Excel Industries Limited  -     0.41   -     -   

(B) Closing Balance as at end of the year :    
     
 Accounts Payable     
 Transpek Industry Limited  -     535.92   -     353.84 
 Excel Industries Limited  -     0.41   -     -   
 Janki Dave  -     -     0.42   -   
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Par�culars

Subsidiary Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced 

by key 
management 
personnel or 

their rela�ves

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
and their 
rela�ves

Previous 
Year's 

amount

2023-24 2022-23

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh)

 Accounts Receivables     
 Agrocel Industries Private Limited  -     3.54   -     -   
 Silox India Pvt Ltd (Formerly Transpek-Silox...)  -     12.17   -     24.79 
 Transpek Industry Limited  -     313.28   -     385.65 
 Excel Industries Limited  -     0.22   -     -   
     
 Deposit Payable : Inter Corporate Deposits    
 Agrocel Industries Private Limited  -     650.00   -     650.00 
 Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  -     850.00   -     850.00 
 Dipkan� Investments & Financing Pvt. Ltd.  -     200.00   -     200.00 
 Excel Bio Resources Limited  -     30.00   -     30.00 
 Kamaljyot Investments Limited  -     70.00   -     70.00 
     
 Deposit Payable : KMP (Directors) and 
 Rela�ves of KMP    
 Atul Shroff  -     -     1,100.00   1,100.00 
 Dipesh Shroff  -     -     500.00   500.00 
 Hiral Dayal  -     -     433.98   433.98 
 Paritosh Dayal  -     -     -     11.84 
 Pra�k Dayal  -     -     -     59.35 
 Ravi Shroff  -     -     500.00   500.00 
 Shru� Shroff  -     -     200.00   200.00 
 Tushar Dayal   -     -     -     148.48 
 Tushar Dayal HUF  -     -     -     32.50 
     
 Interest Payable : Inter Corporate Deposits    
 Agrocel Industries Private Limited  -     378.62   -     314.27 
 Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  -     422.60   -     338.45 
 Dipkan� Investments & Financing  -     55.77   -     35.97 
 Excel Bio Resources Limited  -     2.64   -     2.63 
 Kamaljyot Investments Limited  -     7.56   -     4.99 
 Madison Investments Private Limited  -     1.65   -     1.65 
 Pra�pal Investments Private Limited  -     -     -     5.78 
     
 Interest Payable : Deposit from KMP 
 (Directors) and Rela�ves of KMP    
 Atul Shroff  -     -     546.66   437.76 
 Dipesh Shroff  -     -     244.93   195.43 
 Hiral Dayal  -     -     234.37   191.40 
 Paritosh Dayal  -     -     -     5.20 
 Pra�k Dayal  -     -     -     26.14 
 Ravi Shroff  -     -     265.34   215.84 
 Shru� Shroff  -     -     115.80   96.00 
 Tushar Dayal   -     -     -     69.71 
 Tushar Dayal HUF  -     -     -     14.65 
 Vishwa Shroff  -     -     29.77   29.77 
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NOTE 28.4 Disclosures under Accoun�ng Standard - 19 (Leases)

Company as a Lessee       
During the previous year, the Company had entered into significant leasing arrangement which is primarily in 
nature of  opera�ng leases for machineries.The aggregate lease rentals charged to statement of profit and loss for 
the year amounts to  ₹ 792.00 lakhs (PY ₹ 792.00 lakhs). The lease payment schedule is as follow:

The company  has recognised deferred tax asset on unabsorbed deprecia�on and  carried forward business losses 
as per Income Tax Act, 1961 , to the extent that there is virtual certainty , evidenced by confirmed long term 
agreement for manufacture of  products on "Toll manufacturing basis" and based on that projec�on made by 
management that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be 
realised. 

NOTE 28.7 Disclosure on Feasibility of Going Concern       
        
The company is currently engaged in toll manufacturing at both its facili�es under long-term contracts. However, 
profitability has been affected primarily due to reduced off-take in the tolling arrangements due to interna�onal 
market condi�ons. Despite this, the company an�cipates stable revenue in the coming year.       
        
Addi�onally, the company has also ini�ated research and development of various new products, successfully 
execu�ng a pilot project for one such proprietary product. Following the pilot, the company commenced sales of 
this new product, achieving significant profitability and securing repeat orders. As a result, the company is 

Not later than one year  792.00 792.00
Later than one year but not later than five years 287.42 1,079.42

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 28.5 Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)

Tax effect of items cons�tu�ng deferred tax liability       
Related to Property, Plant and Equipments  440.00 465.00
Total deferred tax liabili�es 440.00 465.00    
       
Tax effect of items cons�tu�ng deferred tax assets       
On Unabsorbed deprecia�on and business loss as per Income 
Tax Act, 1961  1,575.00 1,715.00
Disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961  231.00 116.00
   Total deferred tax assets  1,806.00 1,831.00
   Net Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)  (-)1,366.00 (-)1,366.00
   Net Deferred Tax impact in P&L 0.00 3.00

Par�culars

NOTE 28.6  Disclosures under Accoun�ng Standard - 20 (Earnings Per Share)  

Net Profit available for Equity Shareholders (-)210.61 341.95
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Refer Note 3) 52,50,000 52,50,000
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (₹) (-)4.01 6.51
(Equity Share of Face Value of ₹ 10/- each)

Par�culars
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For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

2023-2024
₹ (Lakh)

2022-2023
₹ (Lakh)
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expanding its manufacturing capacity for this product, an�cipa�ng increased sales volume and revenue in the 
future.       
        
Periodically, the company's promoters have reinforced its financial posi�on through injec�ons of long-term funds. 
Considering the present situa�on and ongoing expansions, further capital infusion by promoters may not be 
required, as the company an�cipates posi�ve cash flows in the foreseeable future. Furthermore, over the past two 
years, the company has received cer�ficates of apprecia�on from the Ministry of Finance, Government of India, 
for being a duly compliant company.       
        
These ini�a�ves are projected to enhance both revenue and cash flows, thereby stabilizing the company's 
opera�ons at sustainable levels. Consequently, the financial statements for the year are presented on a going 
concern basis, reflec�ng prudent asset management and �mely liability se�lement in the ordinary course of 
business.       
        
        
NOTE 28.8 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:       
        
The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006” (MSMED Act, 2006) has been determined to the extent such par�es have been iden�fied 
on the basis of informa�on available with the Company. The same has been relied upon by the auditors.       
        
The disclosures rela�ng to the suppliers as defined in the MSMED Act, 2006 are as under:

Note 1: Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such par�es have been iden�fied 
on the basis of informa�on collected by the management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

55 

 
th35  Annual Report 2023-24  

(a)  The principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the 
end of accoun�ng year 

(b)  The amount of interest due thereon remaining unpaid / 
unclaimed as at the end of the accoun�ng year

(c)  The amount of interest paid in terms of Sec�on 16 along with 
amount of payment made to the suppliers beyond the 
appointed date during the year.  

(d)  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year but without adding interest 
specified under this Act). 

(e)  The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining 
unpaid at the end of the accoun�ng year.

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

 41.55

-

-

-

- 

 36.77

0.23

-

-

0.23 
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NOTE 29  Accoun�ng Ra�os

S
N

Par�culars Numerator Denominator Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

% 
Variance

Reasons for 
variance 

(if +/- 25%)

1 Current Ra�o 
(in �mes)

Current Liabili�esCurrent 
Assets

Debt-Equity Ra�o 
(in �mes)

Shareholder's 
Equity

Short term 
Debt + Long 
term Debt

2

Debt Service Coverage 
Ra�o (in �mes)

Total amount of 
interest & principal 
of long term loan 
payable or paid 
during the year

Net Profit/
(Loss) + 
Deprecia�on
 +  Interest on 
Long Term 
loans

3

Return on Equity Ra�o 
(in %)

Average 
Shareholder's 
Equity

Net Profit/
(Loss) 
A�er Tax

4

Inventory Turnover 
Ra�o (in �mes)

Average InventorySales5

Trade Receivables 
turnover ra�o (in �mes)

Average Trade 
Receivable

Credit Sales6

Trade Payable turnover 
ra�o (in �mes)

Average Trade 
Payable

Credit 
Purchase

7

Net capital turnover 
ra�o (in �mes)

Working CapitalSales8

Net profit ra�o (in %) SalesNet Profit/
(Loss) 
A�er Tax

9

Return on Capital 
employed (in %)

Capital EmployedEarning 
Before 
Interest & Tax

10

Return on Investment 
(in %)

 0.32 

 (2.86)

 0.95 

-10.33%

 22.03 

 17.10 

 3.86 

 (2.08)

-4.16%

18.65%

NA

 0.25 

 (2.36)

 1.33 

14.13%

 33.36 

 16.10 

 3.46 

 (2.32)

5.96%

56.55%

1.05%

29.53%

21.05%

-28.41%

173.13%

-33.95%

6.16%

11.43%

10.39%

169.78%

67.02%

NA

Due to increase 
in fixed deposits 

-

On account 
repayment of 
borrowings 
Due to loss 

Due to loss

Due to decrease 
in turnover 

- 

- 

Due to decrease 
in turnover 

Due to decrease 
in turnover 

Due to decrease 
in turnover 

- Cost of  InvestmentNet Return 
on 
Investment 

11

NOTE 30  Other Statutory Informa�on       
(i) The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been ini�ated or pending 

against the company for holding any Benami property.
       
(ii) The company does not have any rela�onship with struck off companies. 
      
(iii) The company in current year do not have any fresh charges or sa�sfac�on thereof,  which is yet to be 

registered or sa�sfied with ROC. 
      
(iv) The company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.      
 
(v) The company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including 
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foreign en��es (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
      
 (a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever 

by or on behalf of the company (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or  
     
 (b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.
       
(vi) The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign 

en��es(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise) that the 
company shall: 

      
 (a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever 

by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or 
      
 (b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.
       
(vii) The company has no such transac�on which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 
(such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

       
(viii) The company holds all the �tle deeds of immovable property in its name.  
     
(ix) The company is not  declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Ins�tu�on or other lender.      
 
(x) There is no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sec�ons 230 to 237 

of the Companies Act, 2013. 
      
(xi) The quarterly returns /statements filed with the bank are in agreement with the books of accounts.
       
(xii) The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of sec�on 2 of the Act 

read with Companies (Restric�on on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017.       

NOTE 31 The previous year figures have been accordingly regrouped / re-classified to confirm to the current 
                 year's classifica�on.

Signature to Notes '1' to '31'

As per our report of even date 

For CNK & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 101961W/W – 100036 

Pareen Shah 
Partner 
Mem No: 125011 

Date : July 2024th
19   

Place : Vadodara 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Atul Shroff Avtar Singh                 Janki Dave  
Director  Director                  Company Secretary
DIN: 00019645  DIN: 00063569                 Mem. No. ACS : 51289

 

 
 

Date : July 2024th
19  

Place : Vadodara 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of TML Industries Limited

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of TML Industries Limited (“the 
Company”), and its subsidiary (collec�vely referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance 

stSheet as at 31  March 2024, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on (hereina�er referred to as “the Consolidated 
Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in 

stIndia, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31  March, 2024, its consolidated loss and its 
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.
 
Basis for Opinion
 
We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng 
(SAs) specified under sec�on 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We 
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Ma�er

1. We draw a�en�on of the members to Note No. 28.7(a) regarding these Consolidated Financial Statements 
stbeing prepared on going concern basis though the company has nega�ve net worth as on 31  March, 2024 and 

as on that date, its current liabili�es are substan�ally higher than current assets. The same is on the basis of 
management representa�on, that the opera�ons of the company are con�nuing in view of the agreement 
with a customer to manufacture products on “Toll manufacturing basis” and the management future plans for 
expanding its own manufacturing facili�es for new products. 

st 2. We draw a�en�on of the members to Note No. 28.5 that on 31 March, 2024, the company has, recognised 
deferred tax asset of Rs. 1,366.00 lakhs on account of unabsorbed deprecia�on and business losses as per the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 on the basis that the agreement with a customer to manufacture products on “Toll 
manufacturing basis” results in virtual certainty to generate sufficient future taxable income which will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the ma�ers in 1 and 2 above. 

Informa�on Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The holding company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the prepara�on of the other informa�on. The other 
informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the Board’s Report including annexures to Board’s Report but 
does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon;
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Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
informa�on iden�fied above and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent 
with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibili�es of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

The holding company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in Sec�on 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the prepara�on of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
Consolidated financial posi�on, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in 
accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, including the accoun�ng Standards 
specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preven�ng 
and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making 
judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respec�ve Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless management 
either intends to liquidate their respec�ve en��es or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do 
so;

The respec�ve Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the 
Group’s financial repor�ng process.

Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material 
misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control;

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
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appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(I) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls;

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and 
related disclosures made by management;

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exist related to events or condi�ons that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or condi�ons may cause the Group to cease to con�nue as a going concern;

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transac�ons 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on;

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial informa�on of the en��es or business 
ac�vi�es within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible 
for the direc�on, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such en��es 
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditor. For the other 
en��es included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, 
such other auditors remain responsible for the direc�on, supervision and performance of the audits carried 
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion;

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
iden�fied misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and 
�ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Ma�ers

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary company, whose financial statements reflect total assets of 
Rs.0.16 lakhs as at 31st March, 2024, total revenue of Rs. Nil, total loss a�er tax of Rs. Nil and net cash inflows of Rs. 
Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements;

These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the 
management and our report in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of this subsidiary is based 
solely on the report of the other auditor;

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above ma�er with respect to our reliance on the work done 
and the report of the other auditors. 
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Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern in case of Subsidiary Company 

We draw a�en�on to Note No. 28.7(b) in the Consolidated Financial Statements that the subsidiary company has 
stincurred losses during last so many years and accumulated loss of the subsidiary company as on 31  March, 2024 is 

Rs. 93.20 lakhs. The management is of view that it is difficult to con�nue opera�on of the subsidiary company as 
going concern. The management of the subsidiary company evaluates various op�ons.

As stated in Note No. 28.7(b), these event or condi�ons, along with other ma�er as set forth in Note No 28.7(b), 
indicate that material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on subsidiary’s ability to con�nue as going 
concern. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this ma�er.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law rela�ng to prepara�on of the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our examina�on 
of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for 
the purpose of prepara�on of the Consolidated Financial Statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards 
specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act, 

st(e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on 31  March, 2024 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors and the report of the Statutory Auditor of its subsidiary company, 
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified 

stas on 31  March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164(2) of the Act; 

(f) In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements were opera�ng effec�vely as at 31st March, 2024, based on the 
internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the group considering the essen�al 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
financial repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India;

(g) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

(h) In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
remunera�on paid by the Group to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
sec�on 197 of the Act.

(i) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and 
according to the explana�ons given to us: 

I. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial 
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posi�on of the Group – Refer Note No. 27.1 to the consolidated financial statements;

II. The Group has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accoun�ng standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts; 

III. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Educa�on and Protec�on Fund by the Company.

IV. 
i. The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 

Note No.30 (iii) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es 
iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ul�mate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries;

ii. The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 
Note No.30 (iv) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no funds have been received by the 
company from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (“Funding Par�es”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries; and

iii. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our no�ce that has caused us to believe that the 
representa�ons under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement.

V. There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the group company and hence provisions of 
Sec�on 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the group company.

VI. Based on our examina�on which included test checks, the company has used an accoun�ng 
so�ware for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transac�ons recorded in the 
so�ware. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 
feature being tampered with.

2. With respect to the ma�ers specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Sec�on 143(11) of the Act, to be 
included in the Auditor’s report, according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, we report that 
there are no qualifica�ons or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For CNK & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on No: 101961W/W-100036                                             

Pareen Shah
Partner
Membership No.125011

Place: Vadodara
th

Date: 19  July, 2024

UDIN: 24125011BKERAB8182
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A EQUITY & LIABILITIES    
1 Shareholders' Funds    
 (a) Share capital 3 525.00 525.00
 (b) Reserves and surplus 4 (-)2,352.66 (-)2,774.25
     (-)1,827.66 (-)2,249.25
2 Non-Current Liabili�es    
 (a) Long- term borrowings 5 5,193.65 5,217.49
  (b) Long- term provisions 6 394.68 347.82
     5,588.33 5,565.31
3 Current Liabili�es    
 (a) Short term borrowings 7 31.35 94.71
 (b) Trade payables   
  i)  Total outstanding dues of Micro and small 
         enterprises 8 41.55 36.77
  ii)  Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
         than micro and small enterprises 8 741.13 839.68
 (c) Other current liabili�es 9 2,702.18 2,255.29
 (d) Short -term provisions 10 71.09 58.75
     3,587.30 3,285.20
          Total  7,347.97 6,601.26
B ASSETS    
1 Non-Current Assets    
 (a) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 11  
  I) Property, Plant and Equipment  4,465.73 3,773.08
  II) Intangible assets  7.68 6.60
  III) Capital work-in-progress  110.86 330.96
     4,584.27 4,110.64
 (b) Non-current  Investments 12 5.67 5.73
 (c) Deferred tax assets (net) 28.5 1,366.00 1,366.00
 (d) Long- term loans and advances 13 134.73 206.62
 (e) Other non-current assets 14 100.06 94.05
     6,190.73 5,783.04
2 Current Assets    
 (a) Inventories 15 253.89 205.54
 (b) Trade receivables 16 316.63 275.51
 (c) Cash and Bank Balances 17 469.77 48.35
 (d) Short- term loans and advances 18 68.34 71.88
 (e) Other current assets 19 48.61 216.94
     1,157.24 818.22
      Total  7,347.97 6,601.26
  Notes forming part of the Financial Statements     1 to 31

stConsolidated Balance Sheet as at 31  March, 2024

Par�culars
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stAs at 31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023

As per our report of even date 

For CNK & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 101961W/W – 100036 

Pareen Shah 
Partner 
Mem No: 125011 
Date : July 2024 

th19   
Place : Vadodara 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Atul Shroff Avtar Singh                 
Director  Director                  
DIN: 00019645  DIN: 00063569                 

 
 
 

Date : July 2024 th19
 

Place : Vadodara 

Janki Dave  
Company Secretary
Mem. No. ACS : 51289
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I Revenue from Opera�ons  20 5,061.34 5,734.29

II Other Income 21 219.15 218.32

III Total Income (I + II)  5,280.49 5,952.61

    

IV Expenses   

a Cost of Raw Material Consumed 22 116.14 104.73

b Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and 

 Semi Finished Goods 23 (-)42.40 (-)59.25

c Employee Benefits Expense 24 1,424.87 1,205.50

d Finance Costs 25 593.47 636.93

e Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on Expense 11 273.50 256.58

f Other Expenses 26 3,125.52 3,463.17

 Total Expenses (IV)  5,491.10 5,607.66

    

V Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (III-IV)  (-)210.61 344.95

    

VI Tax Expenses   

 Current Tax    -     -   

 Short/Excess  Provision for Tax in earlier years   -     -   

 Deferred Tax 28.5 0.00 3.00

    

VII Profit /(Loss) from Con�nuing Opera�ons (V-VI)  (-)210.61 341.95

    

VIII Earnings  per Equity Share (of Rs 10/- each):   

 Basic and Diluted 28.6 (-)4.01 6.51

 Notes forming part of the Financial Statements  1 to 31

stConsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31  March,2024

Par�culars Note
For the year ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

As per our report of even date 

For CNK & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 101961W/W – 100036 

Pareen Shah 
Partner 
Mem No: 125011 
Date : July 2024 th19   
Place : Vadodara 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Atul Shroff Avtar Singh                 
Director  Director                  
DIN: 00019645  DIN: 00063569                 

 
 
 

Date : July 2024 
th19

 

Place : Vadodara 

Janki Dave  
Company Secretary
Mem. No. ACS : 51289
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A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
 Net Loss Before Tax                                              (-)210.61 344.95
 Adjustments for:   
 Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on Expense  273.50 256.58
 Gain/ Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipments (net)   (-)12.09 (-)40.44
 Dividend Income  0.00 (-)0.06
 Rent Income  (-)2.63 (-)0.06
 Interest Income   (-)17.24 (-)6.12
 Interest Expense   593.46 623.25
 Investment wri�en-off  0.06 0.00
 Unrealised foreign exchange fluctua�on gain  (-)0.01 (-)0.82
                                                                                                                                      835.04 832.33
 Opera�ng Profit/(Loss) before working capital changes 624.43 1,177.28
   
 Adjustments for working capital changes:   
 Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories  (-)48.36 (-)67.28
 Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables  (-)41.13 161.21
 Decrease / (Increase) in Loans and Advances  (-)2.27 2.22
 Decrease / (Increase) in Other assets  171.75 (-)135.10
 (Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables  (-)93.77 (-)274.59
 (Decrease) / Increase in Provisions  59.20 21.90
 (Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabili�es  40.87 (-)97.06
    86.28 (-)388.69
 Cash Generated from Opera�ons  710.71 788.59
   
 Taxes (paid)  68.16 (-)65.22
 Net cash generated from Opera�ng Ac�vi�es (A)  778.87 723.37
   
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
 Purchase of Property, plant and equipment  (-)134.73 (-)318.33
 Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment  35.51 61.76
 (Increase) / Decrease in fixed deposits  (-)430.82 (-)0.39
 Interest received  13.82 6.12
 Rent Received  2.63 0.06
 Dividend received  0.00 0.06
 Net cash generated from / (used in) Inves�ng Ac�vi�es (B)  (-)513.58 (-)250.72
   
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
 Receipt of Other long term borrowings  7.50 0.00
 Repayment of long term borrowings  (-)94.70 (-)297.95
 (Repayment) / Proceeds from short term borrowings   -    0.00
 Interest Paid  (-)187.32 (-)153.68
 Net cash (used in) Financing ac�vi�es (C)  (-)274.52 (-)451.63
   
 Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (-)9.23 21.02
   
 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year  44.54 22.69
   
 Unrealised foreign exchange fluctua�on gain  0.01 0.82
 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year   35.32 44.54

stConsolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31  March, 2024

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)
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 Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents  
 Cash on hand 1.20 1.01
 Balance with schedule banks  
   In Current Account 5.14 8.74
   Debit Balance in Cash Credit Account 28.99 34.79
 Cash and Cash Equivalents (As per Note No.17) 35.32 44.54

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

Notes:  
(i) Figures in the brackets represents cash ou�low. 
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements. 

stConsolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31  March, 2024

As per our report of even date 

For CNK & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 101961W/W – 100036 

Pareen Shah 
Partner 
Mem No: 125011 
Date : July 2024 th19   
Place : Vadodara 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Atul Shroff Avtar Singh                 
Director  Director                  
DIN: 00019645  DIN: 00063569                 

 
 
 

Date : July 2024 th19
 

Place : Vadodara 

Janki Dave  
Company Secretary
Mem. No. ACS : 51289
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
stfor the year ended 31  March, 2024

NOTE 1 - CORPORATE INFORMATION
 
 TML Industries Limited (CIN : U74120GJ1989PLC012329) is a public limited company engaged in 

Manufacturing of Chemicals comprising of Industrial and Specialty chemicals and Intermediates at its 
facili�es located at Piludra and Karakhadi in Gujarat, India. The Company also undertakes toll manufacturing 
ac�vi�es. The Company is ISO cer�fied holding cer�fica�ons ISO 9001:2015 for Quality Management 
System, ISO 14001:2015 for Environment Management System and ISO 45001: 2018 for Occupa�onal 
Health and Safety Management System from TÜV Rheinland cer�fica�on body.

 TML Industries Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiary collec�vely referred to as “Group”.
 
NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 2.1  Basis of Prepara�on of Financial Statements: 
 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 

Accoun�ng Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accoun�ng Standards specified under 
Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2021 and 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act")  as applicable. The accoun�ng policies 
adopted in the prepara�on of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous 
year.

 TML Industries Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiary collec�vely referred to as “Group”.

 Following subsidiary company have been considered in the prepara�on of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements:

 Name of en�ty :  Oasis Agritech Limited
 Rela�onship :  Subsidiary Company
 Country of Incorpora�on :  India
 % of Holding  and vo�ng power either  
 directly or indirectly through subsidiary  :  100%
 
 2.2  Principles of Consolida�on

 The Consolidated Financial Statements relate to TML Industries Limited (the 'Company') & its subsidiary 
company. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

 (i)  The financial statements of the subsidiary company used in the consolida�on are drawn upto the 
stsame repor�ng date as that of the Company i.e. 31  March, 2024.

(ii)  The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary company have been combined on a line-
by-line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabili�es, income and expenses, a�er 
elimina�ng intra-group balances, intra-group transac�ons and resul�ng unrealised profits or losses, 
unless cost cannot be recovered in accordance with Accoun�ng Standard (AS) 21 - “Consolidated 
Financial Statements”.

(iii)  The excess of cost to the Group of its investments in the subsidiary company at the dates on which 
the investments in the subsidiary company were made, is recognised as 'Goodwill' being an asset in 
the Consolidated Financial Statements and is tested for impairment on annual basis. Alterna�vely 
On the other hand, where the share of equity in the subsidiary company as on the date of 
investment is in excess of cost of investments of the Group, it is recognised as 'Capital Reserve' and 
shown under the head 'Reserves & Surplus', in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(iv)  The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accoun�ng policies for 
like transac�ons and other events in similar circumstances in the same manner as the Company's 
separate financial statements.

 Note: Capital Reserve on Consolida�on 

 Par�culars                               (Amount in Rs)
 Amount of Equity and Reserve             5,00,000
 Amount of Investment                          Nil
 Capital Reserve                                    5,00,000
  

 2.3   Significant Accoun�ng Policies

 The Significant Accoun�ng Policies of the Company and that of its subsidiary are similar - Refer Note No. 2 of 
the Standalone Financial Statements.

NOTE 3 - SHARE CAPITAL

Par�culars

stAs at 31 March-2024

Number ₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023

Number ₹ (Lakh)

Authorized       

Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each with vo�ng rights  1,00,00,000   1,000.00   1,00,00,000   1,000.00      

  Total 1,00,00,000   1,000.00   1,00,00,000  1,000.00  

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Shares      

Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each fully paid with vo�ng rights  52,50,000   525.00  52,50,000 525.00      

  Total  52,50,000   525.00  52,50,000  525.00 

a.       Reconcilia�on of Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor�ng period;

Par�culars

stAs at 31 March-2024

Number ₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023

Number ₹ (Lakh)

Shares at the beginning of the year   52,50,000   52.50   52,50,000   525.00  

Shares Issued during the year    -     -     -     -    

Shares bought back during the year   -     -     -     -    

Shares outstanding at the end of the year   52,50,000   52.50   52,50,000   525.00

Equity Shares

b.  Terms & Rights a�ached to each class of shares
 The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity 

shares is en�tled to one vote per share. In the event of the liquida�on of the Company, the holders of equity 
shares will be en�tled to receive remaining assets of the Company. The distribu�on will be in propor�on to 
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Equity Shares

c.       Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Class of Shares / Number of Shareholders 

stAs at 31 March-2024

Number of 
Shares 

stAs at 31 March-2023

Excel Industries Limited   8,88,750   16.93   8,88,750   16.93  

Madison Investments Private Limited   6,56,500   12.50   6,56,500   12.50  

Dipkan� Invesments and Financing Private Limited   5,25,750   10.01   5,25,750   10.01  

Agrocel Industries Private Limited   4,39,000   8.36   4,39,000   8.36  

Ravi Ashwin Shroff   3,06,500   5.84   3,06,500   5.84  

Hrishit Ashwin Shroff   3,05,000   5.81   3,05,000   5.81

% of 
Holding 

Number of 
Shares 

% of 
Holding 
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d.      Details of Promoter's Shareholders holding in the Company

Class of Shares / Number of Shareholders 

stAs at 31 March-2024

Number of 
Shares 

stAs at 31 March-2023

Agrocel Industries Private Limited  4,39,000   8.36  0.00  4,39,000   8.36  0.00
Ami Kan�sen Shroff  7,500   0.14  0.00  7,500   0.14  0.00
Anshul Amrish Bha�a  25,300   0.48  0.00  25,300   0.48  0.00
Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  1,27,000   2.42  0.00  1,27,000   2.42  0.00
Ashwin Champraj Shroff  71,500   1.36  0.00  71,500   1.36  0.00
Atul Dayal  15,500   0.30  0.00  15,500   0.30  0.00
Atul Govindji Shroff  2,28,150   4.35  0.00  2,28,150   4.35  0.19
Atul Govindji Shroff - HUF  -     -     -     -     -    (-)0.19
Chaitanya Dipesh Shroff  10,000   0.19  0.00  10,000   0.19  0.19
Dayal Hiral Tushar  2,43,400   4.64  0.00  2,43,400   4.64  0.00
Dipesh Kan�sen Shroff  21,500   0.41  0.00  21,500   0.41  (-)0.48
Dipkan� investments and Financing Private Limited  5,25,750   10.01  0.00  5,25,750   10.01  0.00
Excel Industries Limited  8,88,750   16.93  0.00  8,88,750   16.93  0.00
Heena L Popat  10,500   0.20  0.00  10,500   0.20  0.00
Hrishit Ashwin Shroff  3,05,000   5.81  0.00  3,05,000   5.81  0.00
Hyderabad Chemicals Limited  5,500   0.10  0.00  5,500   0.10  0.00
Kamaljyot Investments Limited  31,750   0.60  0.00  31,750   0.60  0.00
Krishni Dipesh Shroff  15,000   0.29  0.00  15,000   0.29  0.29
Lalji Popat  500   0.01  0.00  500   0.01  0.00
Madison Investments Private Limited  6,56,500   12.50  0.00  6,56,500   12.50  0.00
Paritosh Dayal  25,700   0.49  0.00  25,700   0.49  0.00
Pra�k Dayal  46,460   0.89  0.00  46,460   0.89  0.00
Pra�pal Investment Private Limited  3,850   0.07  0.00  3,850   0.07  0.00
Pree� Dipesh Shroff  10,000   0.19  0.00  10,000   0.19  0.00
Ravi Ashwin Shroff  3,06,500   5.84  0.00  3,06,500   5.84  0.00
Shru� A Shroff  1,32,470   2.52  0.00  1,32,470   2.52  0.00
Tushar Charandas Dayal  7,700   0.15  0.00  7,700   0.15  0.00
Tushar Charandas Dayal HUF  2,34,050   4.46  0.00  2,34,050   4.46  0.00
Usha Ashwin Shroff  25,000   0.48  0.00  25,000   0.48  0.00
Vishwa Atul Shroff  27,500   0.52  0.00  27,500   0.52  0.00
 Total  44,47,330   84.71  0.00  44,47,330   84.71  0.00

% of 
change 
during 

the year

% of 
total 

shares

Number of 
Shares 

% of 
change 
during 

the year

% of 
total 

shares

NOTE 4 - RESERVES & SURPLUS

Capital Redemp�on Reserve (On redemp�on of preference shares)   
Opening/Closing Balance 500.00 500.00
Capital Reserve 5.00 5.00 
Revalua�on Reserve 
Opening balance 1,201.06 1,201.06
Increase during the year (refer Note 4(1) at below) 632.20 0.00
Closing balance 1,833.26 1,201.06
Securi�es Premium (Created on issue of equity Shares at a premium)
Opening/Closing Balance 760.00 760.00
Sub total   3,098.26 2,466.06
Opening Balance of Statement of Profit and Loss                           (-)5,240.32 (-)5,582.26
Profit / (Loss) during the year (-)210.61 341.94
Closing  Balance of Statement of Profit and Loss   (-)5,450.93 (-)5,240.32   
    Total  (-)2,352.66 (-)2,774.25

Par�culars
stAs at 31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)
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Note 4 (1) REVALUATION OF FREEHOLD LAND

During the year, the Company's freehold land situated at Piludra and Karakhadi factories have been valued 
through government approved valuer M/s. Harsh Purani. The value of land is decided by comparing the sale of 
similar land in the neighborhood loca�on and the situa�on of land, ra�o of frontage of depth, proximity if civic 
ameni�es, power, road frontage premium.

The revalua�on has resulted into increase in the value of land by Rs 632.20 Lakh as per details below.

Asset block : Freehold Land (refer Note 11)   
Value of Land before revalua�on  932.00   365.00   1,297.00
Increase in the value due to revalua�on  559.20   73.00   632.20
Value of Land a�er revalua�on  1,491.20   438.00   1,929.20

Par�culars
TML Karakhadi 

Factrory
Total

TML 
Piludra Factory

NOTE 5 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Par�culars

stAs at 31 March-2024

Total

stAs at 31 March-2023

(a)   Secured Loan       
Term Loan      
From Banks (Refer Note (A) below)  31.35   -     31.35   126.05   31.34   94.71 
(b) Unsecured Loans:      
Inter Corporate Deposits (Refer Note (B) below)  2,200.00   2,200.00   -     2,200.00   2,200.00   -   
From Directors (Refer Note (C) below)  1,148.48   1,148.48   -     1,148.48   1,148.48   -   
From Promotors (Refer Note (D) below)  1,845.17   1,845.17   -     1,837.67   1,837.67   -
   
Sub total  5,225.00   5,193.65   31.35   5,312.20   5,217.49   94.71 
      
Less: Amount disclosed under the head 
"Short Term Borrowings" (Note 7)  31.35   -     31.35   94.71   -     94.71 
      
  Total  5,193.65  5,193.65   -     5,217.49   5,217.49   -   

Current 
Por�on

Non-
Current 
Por�on

Total Current 
Por�on

Non-
Current 
Por�on

₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)

Note No.(A) Details of security and terms of repayment:

(i) Nature of Security

(a)  The term loan of kotak (Term Loan - 1) is secured by first and exclusive charge by way of an equitable 
mortgage on commercial offices at Baroda and first charge on industrial units at Karakhadi. Further the 
above the loan is secured by way of  Second charge on all exis�ng and future current assets of the borrower.

(b)  The term loan of Kotak (Term Loan - 2) is secured under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line  (GECL) under 
ECLGS scheme of Na�onal Credit  Guarantee Trustee Company Ltd  which is secured by second charge on 
Commercial offices at Baroda and industrial units at Karakhadi. 
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(ii) Term of repayments from banks are as below: 

Par�culars

stAs at 31 March-2024 stAs at 31 March-2023

Installment 
(Monthly) 

Rate of 
Interest

Rate of 
Interest

₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)₹ (Lakh)

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited-(Term Loan-1)

Kotak MSME Term Loan-(Term Loan-2)

 -   

 31.35 

 -   

7.85%

 -   

Rs.4.60
upto 

Oct 2024

 44.20 

 81.85 

12.50%

7.85%

Rs.22.67 
upto 

June 2023

Rs.4.60 
upto 

Oct 2024

Note No.(B) Inter- corporate deposits      
The rate of interest on above loans ranges from 11.00% to 13.00%. As represented by the company, the above loans 
are repayable a�er the tenure of  one  year.      
      
Note No.(C) Loan from Directors      
The Company has received the amount from persons who were Directors at the �me of receipt of the amount. The 
rate of Interest on above loans is 11.00%. As represented by the Company, the above loans are repayable a�er the 
tenure of one year.      
      
Note No.(D) Loan from Promotors      
The Company has received the amount from Promoters of the Company in pursuance of the s�pula�on of bank 
loan. The rate of Interest on above loans is 11.00%. As represented by the company, the above loans are repayable 
a�er the tenure of one year.

NOTE 6 - LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Par�culars

stAs at 31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

Provision for Employee Benefits :
Gratuity (Refer note 28.1)
Provision for Compensated Absences (Refer Note 28.1)

331.09
63.59

394.68

297.49
50.33

347.82Total

NOTE 7 - SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Par�culars

Current Maturi�es of Long Term Debts (Refer Note 5)                                 31.35                                 94.71 

Total                                31.35                                 94.71 

NOTE 8 - TRADE PAYABLES

Par�culars

Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises 
(Refer Note No. 28.8)   
Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro and 
small enterprises   

41.55

741.13

782.68Total

Total  31.35  126.05 

Installment 
(Monthly) 

36.77

839.68

876.45
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Trade Payable Ageing Summary

Par�culars

stAs at 31  March, 2024
MSME
Others
Disputed Dues - MSME
Disputed Dues - Others

Total Payable

stAs at 31  March, 2023
MSME
Others
Disputed Dues - MSME
Disputed Dues - Others

Total Payable

< 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years  > 3 Years Total

 41.55 
 741.13 

 -   
 -   

 782.68 

 36.77 
 837.04 

 -   
 -   

 873.81 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 0.02 

 -   
 -   

 0.02 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 0.81 

 -   
 -   

 0.81 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 1.81 

 -   
 -   

 1.81 

 41.55 
 741.13 

 -   
 -   

 782.68 

 36.77 
 839.68 

 -   
 -   

 876.45 

NOTE 9 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest payables  
Interest Accrued and due on deposits  2,399.19   1,992.82 
Interest on dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 28.8)  -     0.23 
  
Other payables   
Payable for Capital Expenditure  -     0.12 
Unclaimed Fixed Deposits  -     3.00 
Unclaimed Interest on Fixed Deposits  0.38   0.62 
Security Deposit  -     0.71 
Advance from Customer  0.05   1.00 
Statutory Dues Payables  107.86   86.29 
Salary and Wages payable  82.82   72.83 
Other Payables  111.87   97.67
    Total  2,702.18 2,255.29

Par�culars

As at 
st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

As at 
st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 10 - SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Employee Benefits   
Gratuity (Refer Note 28.1) 35.84 28.63
Compensated Absences (Refer Note 28.1) 8.96 7.08
Provision for Bonus  26.28 23.04
    Total 71.09 58.75

Par�culars

As at 
st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

As at 
st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)
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NOTE 11 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTE 11 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) DEPRECIATION / AMORTIZATION NET BLOCK

  

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) 

Descrip�on
Addi�ons 

during  
the year 

Dispo-
sals 

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) 

Depre
cia�on / 
amor�s
a�on 
for the 
year

-

-

 
₹ (Lakh) 

Elimina-
ted on  

disposal 
of assets

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) 

(a)(iii) Capital 

Work-In-Progress

Plant and 

Equipment

Total 

Previous Year 

Total 

 330.96 

 330.96 

 38.48 

 10,255.93 

 122.77 

 122.77 

 292.48 

 1,113.40 

 342.87 

 342.87 

 -   

 460.26 

 110.86 

 110.86 

 330.96 

 10,909.07 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 6,145.29 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 273.50 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 6,324.81 

 110.86 

 110.86 

 330.96 

 4,584.26 

 330.96 

 330.96 

 18.20 

 4,110.64 

 -   

 -   

 -   

 93.97 
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As at
st1 April

-2023

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 April

-2023

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 March
-2023

(a)(i) Property, Plant and Equipment

 1,297.00 

 1,584.30 

 6,174.35 

 

105.43 

 47.02 

 179.01 

 

183.01

 9,570.12 

 10,171.77 

 

Freehold land 

(*)

Buildings

Plant and 

equipment

Furniture and 

fixtures

Vehicles

Office 

equipment

Electrical 

installa�ons

 

Total

Previous Year

(*) Freehold land situated at Piludra and Karakhadi factories are measured at revalua�on model. Also refer Note 4 (1)

 632.20 

 2.61 

 295.06 

 5.87

 

 -   

 45.01 

 

0.92 

 

981.67 

 14.45 

 -   

 -   

 117.39

 

 -

   

 -   

 - 

  

 - 

  

 117.39 

 616.10 

 1,929.20 

 1,586.90 

 6,352.02 

 111.31 

 

47.02 

 224.02 

 183.93 

 

10,434.40 

 9,570.12 

 -   

 880.66 

 4,451.84 

 

102.34 

 17.30 

 162.87 

 

182.04 

 5,797.04 

 6,140.01 

 -   

 48.27 

 197.76 

 0.71 

 

3.88 

 14.18 

 0.82 

 265.61 

 251.80 

 -   

 -   

 93.97 

 

-   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 

93.97 

 594.77 

 -   

 928.92 

 4,555.62 

 

103.04 

 21.18 

 177.05 

 

182.86 

 

5,968.68 

 5,797.04 

 1,929.20 

 657.98 

 1,796.40 

 

8.27 

 

25.84 

 46.97 

 

1.08 

 

4,465.73 

 3,773.08 

 1,297.00 

 703.64 

 1,722.51 

 

3.10 

 

29.72 

 16.14 

 

0.98 

 

3,773.08 

 4,031.76 

 24.17 

 97.40 

 

233.27 

 -   

 

354.85 

 354.12 

So�ware

Capital 

contribu�on 

Technical 

know How

Membership 

contribu�on

Total

Previous Year

 

 0.35 

 6.61 

 

-   

 

2.00 

 8.96 

 0.72 

 -   

 -   

 

-   

 

-   

 

-   

 -   

 24.52 

 104.02 

 

233.27 

 

2.00 

 

363.81 

 354.85 

 23.28 

 91.69 

 

233.27 

 -   

 

348.25 

 343.46 

 0.45 

 7.04 

 -   

 

0.40 

 

7.89 

 4.78 

 23.73 

 98.73 

 

233.27 

 

0.40 

 

356.13 

 348.25 

 0.79 

 5.29 

 -   

 

1.60 

 

7.68 

 6.60 

 0.89 

 5.71 

 

-   

 

-   

 

6.60 

 10.66 

(a)(ii) Intangible Assets

 -   

 -   

 

-   

 

-   

 

-   

 -   

Descrip�on GROSS BLOCK (AT COST EXCEPT LAND) DEPRECIATION / AMORTIZATION NET BLOCK
 

  ₹ (Lakh) 

Addi�ons 
during  

the year 

₹ (Lakh) 

Dispo-
sals 

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) 

cia�on / 
Depre-

amor�-
sa�on 
for the 

year 
₹ (Lakh) 

Elimina-
ted on  

disposal 
of assets

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) 

As at
st1 April

-2023

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 April

-2023

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 March
-2024

As at
st1 March
-2023
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Capital Work-In-Progress / Intangible assets under development Ageing

Par�culars

Amount in CWIP / Intangible Assets under 
development for a period of

< 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  > 3 Years 

As at  31st March, 2024          

Projects in progress   109.13   1.73   -      -    

Projects temporarily suspended   -     -     -      -    

As at  31st March, 2023          

Projects in progress   292.48   20.28   18.20    -    

Projects temporarily suspended   -     -     -      -

Capital Work-In-Progress / Intangible assets under development Comple�on

CWIP / Intangible Assets under development

Amount in CWIP / Intangible Assets under 
development for a period of

< 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years  > 3 Years 

As at  31st March, 2024          

Project 1 - CaCl2 system   7.59   -     -      -    

Project 2 - ECH Expansion 50 T   97.66   1.73   -      -    

Project 3 - ECH Process Development Pilot Plant-2   3.88   -     -      -    

As at  31st March, 2023          

Project 1 - 3CPC Produc�on facility   37.78   12.93   18.20    -    

Project 2 - SCADA system for ETP   6.06   7.35   -      -    

Project 3 - ECH Produc�on facility 2 TPD   215.96   -     -      -    

Project 4 - Stack Monitoring System   30.95   -     -      -    

Project 5 - ECH Expansion 50 T   1.73   -     -      -  

NOTE 12 - NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Trade Investment in Subsidiaries (unquoted)  
 Oasis Agritech Ltd  5.00 5.00
 (50,000 Equity share of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)   
 Provision for Diminu�on in Investment  (-)5.00 (-)5.00
     -     -   
 Other than Trade Investments (unquoted)   
 Praga� Sahakari Bank Limited  0.50 0.50
 (5,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)   
 The Alkapuri Arcade Premises Owners Co-op Soc Ltd  0.02 0.02
 (30 Shares of Rs. 50/- each fully paid up)   
 Hunnar Shaala Founda�on for Building Technology and Innova�ons  0.15 0.15
 (1,500 Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)   
 Enviro Infrastructure Co. Limited  5.00 5.00
 (50,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up)   
 Investment in Government Securi�es   
  Na�onal Saving Cer�ficate     -    0.06  
     Total  5.67 5.73
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 10.67 10.73
Aggregate provision for diminu�on in value of investments 5.00 5.00

Par�culars
stAs at 31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)
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Par�culars
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NOTE 13 - LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured, considered good  
Capital Advances 23.63 27.35
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provisions) 111.11 179.27
  
     Total  134.73 206.62

Par�culars

NOTE 14 -  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

Security Deposits  94.98 89.16
Margin Money Deposit under lien to bank for non fund based limits  5.08 4.89
and having maturity of more than 12 months  
  
     Total  100.06 94.05

Par�culars

NOTE 15  - INVENTORIES

Raw Materials   13.83 19.83
Packing Materials  2.04 2.11
Fuel Materials  2.15  1.58 
Stores and Spares   113.52 102.07
Semi Finished goods  58.76 51.81
Finished Goods  69.42  33.96
    Sub-Total (A) 259.72 211.36
Provision For Obsolesces
Stores and Spares   (-)5.82 (-)5.82
    Sub-Total (B) (-)5.82 (-)5.82
    Total (A +B) 253.89 205.54

NOTE 16 - TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Trade Receivables - Unsecured, Considered Good  317.13   279.74  
Less: Provision for Doub�ul Debts 0.49 4.24 

Total   316.63   275.51     

Par�culars

Trade Receivables Ageing Summary

Par�culars
< 6 

Months

As at 31st March, 2024      
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good  315.87   -     0.64   0.52   0.10   317.13 
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Doub�ul  -     -     -     -     -     -   
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good    -     -     -     -     -     -   
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Doub�ul  -     -     -     -     -     -   
     315.87   -     0.64   0.52   0.10   317.13 
Less: Provision for Doub�ul Debts  -     -     0.16   0.26   0.07   0.49 
    Total Trade Receivables  315.87   -     0.48   0.26   0.02   316.63

1-2 
Years

6 Months- 

1 year
2-3 

Years
> 3 Years Total
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stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)
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Trade Receivables Ageing Summary

Par�culars
< 6 

Months

As at 31st March, 2023      
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good    273.06   0.19   0.52   1.50   4.47   279.74 
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Doubful  -     -     -     -     -     -   
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good    -     -     -     -     -     -   
Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Doubful  -     -     -     -     -     -   
     273.06   0.19   0.52   1.50   4.47   279.74 
Less: Provision for Doub�ul Debts  -     -     0.13   0.75   3.35  4.24
    Total Trade Receivables  273.06   0.19   0.39   0.75   1.12   275.51

1-2 
Years

6 Months- 

1 year

2-3 
Years

> 3 Years Total

NOTE 17 - CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and Cash Equivalents  
Cash on Hand  1.20 1.01
Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 5.14 8.74
Balance with Cash Credit Accounts (refer Note no (A))  28.99 34.79
    35.33 44.55
Balances with Banks  
 (i) In Deposit Accounts 
       (amount kept as Liquid Assets with Scheduled Banks)  434.43 3.81
  
     Total  469.77 48.35
Of the above, the balances that meet the defini�on of Cash and 
Cash Equivalents as per AS 3 Cash Flow Statements i.e. Cash on 
Hand plus Balance in Current & CC Accounts 35.33 44.55

Par�culars

Note No. (A) Details of Security for the Secured Short-Term Borrowings:

Working Capital facili�es from IDBI Bank Ltd. 
Working capital facility on Cash Credit account is secured by first pari-passu charge by way of hypotheca�on on 
en�re current assets and second pari-passu charge on fixed assets at Piludra and Karakhadi plants of the Company. 
The rate of interest ranges from 12.80% to 13.25%.

NOTE 18 - SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured, Considered Good  
Balance with Government Authori�es  2.29 3.82
Deposits    9.29  -   
Prepaid Expenses   41.24 51.13
Advance to Suppliers  15.52 16.93
     Total   68.34 71.88

Par�culars

NOTE 19 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Accrued Interest Income  8.25 4.83
Other Receivables  40.36 212.11
     Total   48.61 216.94

Par�culars
As at 31-Mar-2024

₹ (Lakh)
As at 31-Mar-2023

₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)
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NOTE 20 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Sale of Products (Refer Note 20(i)) 332.11 645.74
Job Work Income 4,729.24 5,088.55
     Total Revenue from Opera�ons 5,061.34 5,734.29

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 20 (i) - Sale of Product comprises of:

Manufactured Goods:  
Acid Chloride and Others 332.11 645.74
     Total - Sale of Products 332.11 645.74

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 21 - OTHER INCOME

Interest Income (Refer Note Below) 17.24 6.12
Other Non Opera�ng Income (Refer Note Below) 195.09 205.22
Reversal of Provision for Doub�ul Debts 3.74  -   
Sales - Scrap  0.44 6.86
Dividend Income   -    0.06
Rent Income  2.63 0.06
     Total  219.15   218.32 

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 Marchr-2023

₹ (Lakh)

Interest Income comprises:  
Interest from Banks on Deposits 1.14 0.39
Interest on Income Tax Refund 10.49  -   
Other Interest 5.61 5.73
     Total - Interest Income 17.24 6.12
Other Non-Opera�ng Income comprises:  
Profit on sale of assets (net)  12.09 40.44
Wind Power Income  182.99 163.66
Special Discount on Purchase   -    0.31
Gain  on Foreign Exchange Fluctua�on (Net)  0.01  0.82
Miscellaneous balance wri�en back (net)   -    0.00
    Total - Other non-opera�ng Income 195.09 205.22

Par�culars
For the year ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 22 - COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED

Opening stock 19.83 4.13
Add: Purchases 110.14 120.42
    129.97 124.55
Less: Closing stock 13.83 19.83
     Total 116.14 104.73

Par�culars
For the year ended 

31-Mar-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
31-Mar-2023

₹ (Lakh)
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NOTE 22(i) - COST OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED COMPRISES OF : 

Ace�c Acid & Chlorinated Ace�c Acids  116.14 104.73

     Total 116.14 104.73

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 23 - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND SEMI FINISHED GOODS

Inventories at the end of the Year:  

Finished Goods 69.42 33.96

Work In Progress 58.76 51.81

    128.17 85.77

Inventories at the Beginning of the Year:  

Finished Goods 33.96  -   

Work In Progress 51.81 26.52

    85.77 26.52

     Net (Increase) / Decrease (-)42.40 (-)59.25

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 24 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Wages  and Bonus   1,078.44   882.74 

Contribu�ons to Provident Fund and other Funds   179.97   157.28 

Staff Welfare Expenses   166.47   165.49 

     Total  1,424.87   1,205.50

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 25 - FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on:  

(i) Borrowings   585.46   608.98 

(ii) Cash Credit    4.08   5.76 

(iii) Others    0.02   13.68 

Other Borrowing Costs   3.92   8.51 

     Total  593.47   636.93

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st

31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st

31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 26 - OTHER EXPENSES 

Consump�on of Power & Fuel   932.15   914.15 

Consump�on of Stores & Spares   3.51   12.71 

Consump�on of Packing Materials   11.52   2.98 

Payments to Contractors   538.59   439.55 

Provision for Doub�ul Debts   -     4.24 

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)
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Payments to the Auditors Comprises:  

Statutory Audit Fees 5.00 5.00

Cer�fica�on Fees 0.08 0.10

Other Ma�ers 0.35  - 

     Total 5.43 5.10

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 27  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

(a) Con�ngent Liabili�es      

(i) Bank Guarantees issued by bank on behalf of Company for 

which company has issued counter guarantee  2.65 2.65

      

(b) Claims against the company not acknowledge as debts:      

(i) Disputed Income Tax Liability  -    10.84

(ii) Disputed Labour Law & Other Cases (*) 6.00 6.00

 (*) As represented by management, there are some other 

 ongoing cases for which amount is not ascertainable.     

     Total 8.65 19.49

(c) Commitments      

(I) Es�mated amount of  Contracts  to  be executed on capital 

 account and not provided for  23.63 46.34

 Advances paid for the same  23.63 27.35

Par�culars

As at 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

As at
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

NOTE 27.1 Con�ngent Liabili�es and Capital Commitments

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

Repairs & Maintenance : Building   4.19   9.46 

Repairs & Maintenance : Plant & Machinery   43.98   18.22 

Repairs & Maintenance : Others   35.78   29.58 

Rates and Taxes   7.06   10.28 

Insurance     42.17   36.09 

Legal and Professional Fees   30.71   37.25 

Effluent Discharge Expenses   85.64   79.48 

By-product Discharge Expenses   403.06   898.94 

Environment Monitoring Expenses   23.92   27.84 

Payments to Auditors (Refer Note Below)   5.43   5.10 

Wind Mill Maintenance Charges   50.35   34.13 

Rent for Machineries (Refer Note 28.4)   792.00   792.00 

Miscellaneous Expenses   115.47   111.18 

     Total  3,125.52   3,463.17
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NOTE 27.2 
In current year, the Company has not entered into any Forward Contract with its Bankers. Also, there are no open 

st Forward Contracts at the year end. Foreign Currency Exposure not hedged by deriva�ve instruments as on 31
stMarch, 2024 and 31  March, 2023 is as follows:     

Raw materials  -     42.00 

Par�culars

Par�culars Currency Amount in 
Foreign 

currency (*) ₹ (Lakh)

Amount in 
Foreign 

currency (*) ₹ (Lakh)

Cash Balances USD 957.00 0.80 957.00 0.79

  Chinese Yuan  62.00 0.01 62.00 0.01

  GB Pound 25.20 0.03 25.20 0.03

  "Egyp�an Pound (**)" 17.00 0.00 17.00 0.00

  EURO 19.80 0.02 19.80 0.02

 NOTE 27.3 (a) Value of imports calculated on C.I.F.basis by Company during the financial year in respect of

 NOTE 27.4 (b) Details of consump�on of imported and indigenous items 

Par�culars

%

Imported-Raw materials  -    0% 46.60 44%
Indigenous-Raw materials 116.14 100% 58.13 56%
Indigenous-Spare parts 3.51 100% 12.71 100%
  Total 119.65  117.44

₹ (Lakh) %₹ (Lakh)

 NOTE 27.5 Expenditure in Foreign Currency :

Travelling expenses  -     -

Par�culars

 NOTE 27.6 Earnings in Foreign Currency :

FOB Value of Exports  -     -

Par�culars

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2024 stAs at 31 March-2023

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

(*) in absolute figures 
(**) Nil due to rounding off in Lakh 
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NOTE 28 
Disclosures under Accoun�ng  Standards as prescribed under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2021      

NOTE 28.1  Disclosures under Accoun�ng Standard - 15 (Employee Benefits)      
       
 Accoun�ng Standard 15 on 'Employee Benefits'  as  prescribed under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2021.      
       
 Defined contribu�on plans      
 The Company makes Provident Fund and Superannua�on Fund contribu�ons to defined contribu�on plans for 
qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the 
payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contribu�ons payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified 
in the rules of the schemes.      

Defined benefit plans      
The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:      
i. Gratuity      
ii. Leave Encashment      
      
The following table sets out the funded status of the gratuity and leave encashment and the amount recognised in 
the financial statements:      

Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31-03-2024 is as under :-
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Par�culars

Provident Fund Superannua�on Fund

Par�culars

Gratuity (Funded)

(i) Defined Benefit Plan     
 Current Service Cost 19.77 18.02 7.50 4.54
 Interest Cost on Benefit Obliga�on 25.47 21.98 3.98 3.44
 Expected (Return)/Loss on Plan Assets   (-)2.42 (-)2.67  -     -   
 Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 30.25 21.98 10.14 5.53
 Total Expense recognized during the year  73.07 59.31 21.62 13.52
      
(ii) Reconcilia�on of Opening and Closing 
 Balance of Obliga�on 
 Obliga�on  361.99 322.29 57.40 53.56
 Current Service Cost 19.77 18.02 7.50 4.54
 Interest Cost 25.47 21.98 3.98 3.44
 Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 30.08 21.61 10.14 5.53
 Benefits Paid (-)31.49 (-)21.92 (-)6.47 (-)9.68
 PV of Obliga�on  405.82 361.99 72.55 57.40

Leave (Non- Funded)

For the year
ended 

st
31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st
31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st
31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st
31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

st31 March-2023
₹ (Lakh)

Contribu�on recognised in the statement 
of Profit and Loss 75.12 69.55 17.51 13.29



TML
 TML Industries Limited     

Par�culars
For the year

ended 
31-Mar-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

31-Mar-2023
₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

31-Mar-2024
₹ (Lakh)

For the year
ended 

31-Mar-2023
₹ (Lakh)

(iii) Change in Plan Assets     
 Fair Value of Plan Assets  35.87 27.03  -     -   
 Expected Return on Plan Assets 2.42 2.67  -     -   
 Adjustment in Opening Balance (-)1.49  -     -     -   
 Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (-)0.17 (-)0.37  -     -   
 Contribu�ons 33.00 29.00 6.47 9.68
 Cash at Bank 2.91 1.49  
 Expenses debited by the Insurance Co. (-)2.16 (-)2.04  -     -   
 Benefits Paid (-)31.49 (-)21.92 (-)6.47 (-)9.68
 Fair Value of Plan Assets  38.89 35.87  -     -   
      
(iv) Net Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet     
  PV of Obliga�on  405.82 361.99 72.55 57.40
 Fair Value of Plan Assets  38.89 35.87  -     -   
 Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet (-)366.93 (-)326.12 (-)72.55 (-)57.40
      
(v) Principal Actuarial Assump�ons     
 Discount rate  7.11% 7.36% 7.11% 7.36%
 Rate of Return on Plan Assets  6.35% 8.52% - -
 Expected increase in salary cost 3% to 4% 3.00% 3% to 4% 3.00%

Par�culars of Gratuity 2019-20

Defined Benefit Obliga�ons 405.82 361.99 322.29 277.43 246.78
Fair Value of Plan Assets 38.89 35.87 27.03 30.90 38.85
Surplus/(Deficit) in the Plan (-)366.93 (-)326.12 (-)295.26 (-)246.53 (-)207.93
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on the Plan Assets (-)0.17 (-)0.37  0.01   0.05   -   
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on the Plan Obliga�ons 30.08 21.61 32.76 16.21 14.70

Amount Recognised in the current year and previous four years

2020-212021-222022-232023-24

Par�culars of Leave 2019-20

Defined Benefit Obliga�ons 72.55 57.40 59.54 53.40 56.92
Fair Value of Plan Assets  -     -     -     -     -   
Surplus/(Deficit) in the Plan (-)72.55 (-)57.40 (-)59.54 (-)53.40 (-)56.92
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on the Plan Assets  -     -     -     -     -   
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on the Plan Obliga�ons 10.14 5.53 4.31 2.59 0.41

2020-212021-222022-232023-24

Notes:      
1 Discount rate is determined by reference to market yield at the Balance Sheet date on Government Bonds, 

where the currency and terms of the Govt. Bonds are consistent with the currency and es�mated terms for the 
benefit obliga�on.    

 
2 The es�mate of future salary increase take into account infla�on, seniority, promo�on and other relevant 

factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.    
 
3 100% of Plan Assets are invested in Group Gratuity Scheme offered by Life Insurance Corpora�on of India.    

Gratuity (Funded) Leave (Non- Funded)
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NOTE 28.2 Disclosures under Accoun�ng Standard - 17 (Segment Repor�ng)      
       
i. Business Segment: The company operates in a single segment as manufacturer of industrial and specialty 

chemicals and intermediates and Job work for its related products "Chemicals".      
       
ii. Secondary Segment: The company mainly caters to domes�c clients and therefore there are no reportable 

geographical segments.     

NOTE 28.3 Disclosures under Accoun�ng Standard -18 (Related Party Disclosures)

(i)   Names of related par�es with descrip�on of rela�onship with whom transac�ons have taken place: 

Name of related par�es

Oasis Agritech Limited

Agrocel Industries Private Limited
Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited
Dipkan� Investments & Financing Private Limited
Excel Bio Resources Limited
Excel Industries Ltd
Kamaljyot Investments Limited
Madison Investments Private Limited
Silox India Private Limited (formerly Transpek Silox Industry Pvt. Ltd.)
Transchem Agritech Private Limited
Transpek Industry Limited
Aatapi Seva Founda�on (up to 10th June,2022)
Pra�pal Investments Private Limited (up to 10th June,2022)
Tushar Dayal HUF (up to 10th June,2022)

Ashwin Shroff
Atul Shroff
Avtar Singh
Dipesh Shoff
L.Rajagopalan
Mukesh Patel
Ravi Shroff
Shak� Mehta
Late Shri Maulik Mehta
Bimal Mehta
Tushar Dayal
Kru� Parekh
Janki Dave

Director
Director
Director
Director
Independent Director
Director
Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Director
Director
Company Secretary
Company Secretary

from 10th June,2022
from 10th June,2022

from 10th June,2022

from 29th June,2023
up to 1st June,2023
up to 10th June,2022
up to 10th June,2022
up to 25th November,2023
from 16th February,2024

Hiral Dayal
Shru� Shroff
Vishwa Shroff
Paritosh Dayal (upto 10th June,2022)
Pra�k Dayal (upto 10th June,2022)

Descrip�on of rela�onship

Subsidiary Companies

Enterprises owned or 
significantly influenced by
key management personnel 
or their rela�ves

Key Management Personnel

Rela�ves of key management 
personnel

83 

 
th35  Annual Report 2023-24  



 TML Industries Limited  
TML

   

Par�culars

Subsidiary Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced 

by key 
management 
personnel or 

their rela�ves

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
and their 
rela�ves

Previous 
Year's 

amount

 Sale of Goods    -     152.72   -     462.48 
 Job Work Income   -     3,505.90   -     3,927.69 
 Purchase of Goods   -     0.16   -     0.19 
 Reimbursement of Expenses   -     1,226.95   -     1,171.77 
 Rent for Machineries   -     792.00   -     792.00 
 Interest on Deposits   -     199.30   300.74   527.78 
 Professional Fees Paid   -     -     -     9.30 
 Remunera�on Paid   -     -     11.44   6.18 
 Rent Income   -     2.63   -     0.06 
 Rent Deposit   -     0.41   -     -

(ii) Par�culars of Transac�ons with Related Par�es

st(A) Transac�ons with related par�es for the year ended 31  March, 2024 are as follows:

2023-24 2022-23

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh)

 Accounts Payable   -     536.33   0.42   353.84 
 Accounts Receivable   -     329.21   -     410.43 
 Deposits Payable   -     1,800.00   2,733.98   4,786.15 
 Interest Payable on Deposits   -     868.83   1,436.86   1,985.64 

As at 
st31 March-2024

As at 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh)

(B)  Balance Outstanding at the year end:

Par�culars

(A) Transac�ons during the year :    
 Sale of Goods    
 Silox India Pvt Ltd (Formerly Transpek-Silox...)  -     152.72   -     462.48 
     
 Toll Manufacturing / Job Work Income    
 Transpek Industry Limited  -     3,505.90   -     3,927.69 
     
 Purchase of Goods    
 Transchem Agritech Private Limited  -     0.16   -     0.19 

(iii)  Significant transac�ons with related par�es:    

Par�culars

Subsidiary Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced 

by key 
management 
personnel or 

their rela�ves

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
and their 
rela�ves

Previous 
Year's 

amount

2023-24 2022-23

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh)
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Par�culars

Subsidiary Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced 

by key 
management 
personnel or 

their rela�ves

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
and their 
rela�ves

Previous 
Year's 

amount

2023-24 2022-23

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh)

 Reimbursement of Expenses    
 Agrocel Industries Private Limited  -     3.61   -     1.09 
 Transpek Industry Limited  -     1,223.34    1,170.68 
     
 Rent for Machineries    
 Transpek Industry Limited  -     792.00   -     792.00 
     
 Interest on Inter Corporate Deposits    
 Agrocel Industries Private Limited  -     71.50   -     71.50 
 Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  -     93.50   -     93.50 
 Dipkan� Investments & Financing Pvt. Ltd.  -     22.00   -     22.00 
 Excel Bio Resources Limited  -     3.90   -     3.90 
 Kamaljyot Investments Limited  -     8.40   -     8.40 

 Interest on Deposit from KMP (Directors) 
 and Rela�ves of KMP    
 Atul Shroff  -     -     121.00   121.00 
 Dipesh Shroff  -     -     55.00   55.00 
 Hiral Dayal  -     -     47.74   47.74 
 Paritosh Dayal  -     -     -     1.30 
 Pra�k Dayal  -     -     -     6.53 
 Ravi Shroff  -     -     55.00   55.00 
 Shru� Shroff  -     -     22.00   22.00 
 Tushar Dayal   -     -     -     16.33 
 Tushar Dayal HUF  -     -     -     3.58 
     
 Professional Fees Paid    
 Transchem Agritech Private Limited  -     -     -     0.30 
 Tushar Dayal   -     -     -     9.00 
     
 Remunera�on Paid    
 Kru� Parekh  -     -    10.51  6.18 
 Janki Dave  -     -     0.93   -   
     
 Rent Income    
 Aatapi Seva Founda�on  -     -     -     0.06 
 Excel Industries Limited  -     2.63   -     -   
     
 Rent Deposit    
 Excel Industries Limited  -     0.41   -     -   

(B) Closing Balance as at end of the year :    
     
 Accounts Payable     
 Transpek Industry Limited  -     535.92   -     353.84 
 Excel Industries Limited  -     0.41   -     -   
 Janki Dave  -     -     0.42   -   
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Par�culars

Subsidiary Enterprises 
owned or 

significantly 
influenced 

by key 
management 
personnel or 

their rela�ves

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
and their 
rela�ves

Previous 
Year's 

amount

2023-24 2022-23

₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh) ₹ (Lakh)

 Accounts Receivables     
 Agrocel Industries Private Limited  -     3.54   -     -   
 Silox India Pvt Ltd (Formerly Transpek-Silox...)  -     12.17   -     24.79 
 Transpek Industry Limited  -     313.28   -     385.65 
 Excel Industries Limited  -     0.22   -     -   
     
 Deposit Payable : Inter Corporate Deposits    
 Agrocel Industries Private Limited  -     650.00   -     650.00 
 Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  -     850.00   -     850.00 
 Dipkan� Investments & Financing Pvt. Ltd.  -     200.00   -     200.00 
 Excel Bio Resources Limited  -     30.00   -     30.00 
 Kamaljyot Investments Limited  -     70.00   -     70.00 
     
 Deposit Payable : KMP (Directors) and 
 Rela�ves of KMP    
 Atul Shroff  -     -     1,100.00   1,100.00 
 Dipesh Shroff  -     -     500.00   500.00 
 Hiral Dayal  -     -     433.98   433.98 
 Paritosh Dayal  -     -     -     11.84 
 Pra�k Dayal  -     -     -     59.35 
 Ravi Shroff  -     -     500.00   500.00 
 Shru� Shroff  -     -     200.00   200.00 
 Tushar Dayal   -     -     -     148.48 
 Tushar Dayal HUF  -     -     -     32.50 
     
 Interest Payable : Inter Corporate Deposits    
 Agrocel Industries Private Limited  -     378.62   -     314.27 
 Anshul Specialty Molecules Private Limited  -     422.60   -     338.45 
 Dipkan� Investments & Financing  -     55.77   -     35.97 
 Excel Bio Resources Limited  -     2.64   -     2.63 
 Kamaljyot Investments Limited  -     7.56   -     4.99 
 Madison Investments Private Limited  -     1.65   -     1.65 
 Pra�pal Investments Private Limited  -     -     -     5.78 
     
 Interest Payable : Deposit from KMP 
 (Directors) and Rela�ves of KMP    
 Atul Shroff  -     -     546.66   437.76 
 Dipesh Shroff  -     -     244.93   195.43 
 Hiral Dayal  -     -     234.37   191.40 
 Paritosh Dayal  -     -     -     5.20 
 Pra�k Dayal  -     -     -     26.14 
 Ravi Shroff  -     -     265.34   215.84 
 Shru� Shroff  -     -     115.80   96.00 
 Tushar Dayal   -     -     -     69.71 
 Tushar Dayal HUF  -     -     -     14.65 
 Vishwa Shroff  -     -     29.77   29.77 
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NOTE 28.4 Disclosures under Accoun�ng Standard - 19 (Leases)

Company as a Lessee       
During the previous year, the Company had entered into significant leasing arrangement which is primarily in 
nature of  opera�ng leases for machineries.The aggregate lease rentals charged to statement of profit and loss for 
the year amounts to  ₹ 792.00 lakhs (PY ₹ 792.00 lakhs). The lease payment schedule is as follow:

The company  has recognised deferred tax asset on unabsorbed deprecia�on and  carried forward business losses 
as per Income Tax Act, 1961 , to the extent that there is virtual certainty , evidenced by confirmed long term 
agreement for manufacture of  products on "Toll manufacturing basis" and based on that projec�on made by 
management that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be 
realised. 

NOTE 28.7 (a) Disclosure on Feasibility of Going Concern       
        
The company is currently engaged in toll manufacturing at both its facili�es under long-term contracts. However, 
profitability has been affected primarily due to reduced off-take in the tolling arrangements due to interna�onal 
market condi�ons. Despite this, the company an�cipates stable revenue in the coming year.       
        
Addi�onally, the company has also ini�ated research and development of various new products, successfully 
execu�ng a pilot project for one such proprietary product. Following the pilot, the company commenced sales of 
this new product, achieving significant profitability and securing repeat orders. As a result, the company is 
expanding its manufacturing capacity for this product, an�cipa�ng increased sales volume and revenue in the 
future.       

Not later than one year  792.00 792.00
Later than one year but not later than five years 287.42 1,079.42

Par�culars

NOTE 28.5 Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)

Tax effect of items cons�tu�ng deferred tax liability       
Related to Property, Plant and Equipments  440.00 465.00
Total deferred tax liabili�es 440.00 465.00    
       
Tax effect of items cons�tu�ng deferred tax assets       
On Unabsorbed deprecia�on and business loss as per Income 
Tax Act, 1961  1,575.00 1,715.00
Disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961  231.00 116.00
Total deferred tax assets  1,806.00 1,831.00
Net Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)  (-)1,366.00 (-)1,366.00
Net Deferred Tax impact in P&L 0.00 3.00

Par�culars

NOTE 28.6  Disclosures under Accoun�ng Standard - 20 (Earnings Per Share)  

Net Profit available for Equity Shareholders (-)210.61 341.95
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Refer Note 3) 52,50,000 52,50,000
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (₹) (-)4.01 6.51
(Equity Share of Face Value of ₹ 10/- each)

Par�culars
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st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

2023-2024
₹ (Lakh)

2022-2023
₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)
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Periodically, the company's promoters have reinforced its financial posi�on through injec�ons of long-term funds. 
Considering the present situa�on and ongoing expansions, further capital infusion by promoters may not be 
required, as the company an�cipates posi�ve cash flows in the foreseeable future. Furthermore, over the past two 
years, the company has received cer�ficates of apprecia�on from the Ministry of Finance, Government of India, 
for being a duly compliant company.       
        
These ini�a�ves are projected to enhance both revenue and cash flows, thereby stabilizing the company's 
opera�ons at sustainable levels. Consequently, the financial statements for the year are presented on a going 
concern basis, reflec�ng prudent asset management and �mely liability se�lement in the ordinary course of 
business.

(b) Disclosure on Feasibility of Going Concern       
(as men�oned in the audit report of Oasis Agritech Limited, a subsidiary company)       
       
The subsidiary company has incurred losses during last so many years and accumulated loss of the subsidiary 
company as on 31.03.2024 is Rs. 93.20 lakhs. The management is of view that it is diffucult to con�nue opera�on of 
the subsidiary company as going concern. The management evaluates various op�ons to resolve the problem 
related to going concern.
        
NOTE 28.8 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:       
        
The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006” (MSMED Act, 2006) has been determined to the extent such par�es have been iden�fied 
on the basis of informa�on available with the Company. The same has been relied upon by the auditors.       
        
The disclosures rela�ng to the suppliers as defined in the MSMED Act, 2006 are as under:

(a)  The principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the 
end of accoun�ng year 

(b)  The amount of interest due thereon remaining unpaid / 
unclaimed as at the end of the accoun�ng year

(c)  The amount of interest paid in terms of Sec�on 16 along with 
amount of payment made to the suppliers beyond the 
appointed date during the year.  

(d)  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year but without adding interest 
specified under this Act). 

(e)  The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining 
unpaid at the end of the accoun�ng year.

Par�culars

Note 1:  Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such par�es have been 
iden�fied on the basis of informa�on collected by the management. This has been relied upon by the 
auditors.

For the year ended 
st31 March-2024

₹ (Lakh)

For the year ended 
st31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

 41.55

-

-

-

- 

 36.77

0.23

-

-

0.23 
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NOTE 29 (a) The details of subsidiary which is included in the CFS of the Company and the Company's effec�ve 
ownership therein is as under:

NOTE 30  Other Statutory Informa�on       
(I) The group in current year do not have any fresh charges or sa�sfac�on thereof,  which is yet to be registered 

or sa�sfied with ROC.
       
(ii) The group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year. 
      
(iii) The group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including 

foreign en��es (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
      
 (a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever 

by or on behalf of the company (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or  
     
 (b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.
       
(iv) The group have not received any fund from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (Funding 

Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise) that the company shall:
       
 (a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party (Ul�mate Beneficiaries) or 
      
 (b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries. 
      
(v) The group has no such transac�on which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered 

or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, 
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.       

Name of the Company Rela�onship Country of 
Incorpora�on stAs at 31 March-2023

₹ (Lakh)

stAs at 31 March-2024
₹ (Lakh)

Group's Propor�on of Ownership Interest   

Oasis Agritech Limited Subsidiary India 100% 100%

(b) Informa�on as per Schedule III of Sec�on 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 is provided as under:

Par�culars

Share in Profit or Loss   Net Assets i.e Total Assets minus 
Total Liabili�es

Amount 
(Rs. in lakhs)

As a % of 
consolidated 

Net Assets

Amount 
(Rs. in lakhs)

As a % of 
consolidated 

Net Assets

TML Industries Limited (Parent) 
 
Subsidiaries: 
1. Indian : Oasis Agritech Limited 
2. Foreign: NA 
 
Associates: 
1. Indian: NA 
2. Foreign: NA 

100%

 
0%

100%

 (1,827.66)
 (PY : (2,249.25)) 

 
 -   

 (1,827.66)

100% 
 
 

0% 
 
 
 
 
 

100% 

 (210.61) 
 (PY : 341.95)  

  
 -    

 
 
 
 
 

 (210.61) 
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(vi) The group holds all the �tle deeds of immovable property in its name.
       
(vii) The group has borrowings from banks secured against Current Assets and quarterly returns filed for the 

same with the banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company. 
      
(viii) There is no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sec�ons 230 to 237 

of the Companies Act, 2013.       
 

Signature to Notes '1' to '31'

NOTE 31 The previous year figures have been accordingly regrouped / re-classified to confirm to the current 
                 year's classifica�on.

As per our report of even date 

For CNK & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 101961W/W – 100036 

Pareen Shah 
Partner 
Mem No: 125011 
Date : July 2024 th19   
Place : Vadodara 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Atul Shroff Avtar Singh                 
Director  Director                  
DIN: 00019645  DIN: 00063569                 

 
 
 

Date : July 2024 th19
 

Place : Vadodara 

Janki Dave  
Company Secretary
Mem. No. ACS : 51289
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